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DearMembers,

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting their

44TH Annual Report along with audited annual statements of

Accounts for the financial year ended on 31st March,2025

FINANCIAL RESULTS

(Rs.inLakh)

                       Year ended   Year ended

31-03-2025  31-03-2024

Turnover 2496.82  940.24

Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation 316.56  211.56

Depreciation 71.9  2.05

Profit/(Loss) beforeTax 244.66  209.51

Provision for IncomeTax-Current Tax 42.09  35.72

-Deferred Tax 29.51  0.4

Profit /( Loss) after Tax 173.06  173.39

Balance brought forward 1767  1594

Balance carried forward 1940  1767

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIR

During the year under review the company has generated total

turnover of Rs. 2496.82 lakhs as compared to previous financial

year which was Rs.940.24 lakhs. The company has achieved net

profit of Rs.173.06 lakhs as compared to previous financial year

which was Rs.173.39 lakhs.

OPERATIONS

The manufacturing operations of the Company have commenced

its ,Commercial production activity start from 27th December 2024

and other continue in the year.

DIVIDEND

Your directors are unable to recommend any Dividend on the

Equity Shares in view of the financial position of the Company.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE

The Board of Directors has decided to retain the entire amount of

profit, did not transfer any amount to reserve during the year ended

on March 31, 2025.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no Change in Share Capital of the Company during

the Financial Year 2024-25.

As on 31st March, 2025, the Authorised Share Capital of the

company is Rs. 12,50,00,000 comprising of 1,24,90,000 Equity

Shares of Rs. 10 each & 1000 Preference Share of 100 each.The

Paid-up equity Share Capital of your Company stood at Rs.

9,05,36,300 comprising of 90,53,630 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

During the year under review, therewere:

No Buy Back of Equity Shares

 No Employee Stock Option Plan was passed

 No Further public offers

No Fresh Issue of Equity Shares by way of Bonus Allotment on

Right Issue Basis.

Company has neither issued any shares with differential voting

rights nor has it granted any Stock Option or Sweat Equity.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSON

Appointment and Resignation : During the year, no changes have

taken place in composition of Board of Directors and Key

Managerial Personnel of the Company.

The Designation of Mr. Ashok Kumar Kothari has been changed

from Managing Director to Director and the designation of

Mr. Anshul Kothari has been changed from Director to Managing

director of the company w.e.f 28.05.2024.

Retire By Rotation:As per provisions of Section 152 (6) the

Companies Act 2013 and the Articles of Association of the

Company, Mrs. Sushila Kothari (DIN: 00132802) Director of the

Company retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General

Meeting and being eligible, offer herself for re-appointment.

Key ManagerialPersonnel : During the year Mr. Anshul Kothari

Managing Director, Mr. Bhopal Singh Choudhary Chief Financial

Officer, Ms. Anjali Jain (upto 31.12.2024) & Ms. Ritu Jhamnani

(w.e.f 02.01.2025) Company Secretary are the Key managerial Personnel.

The current composition of board is

           Name                                                Designation

1.       Mr. Anshul Kothari                           Managing Director

2.       Mr. Ashok Kumar Kothari                Director

3.       Mrs. Sushila Kothari                        Director

4.       Mrs.ChitraNaraniwal                        Independent Director

5.       Mr. Himanshu Jhamar                     Independent Director

6.       Ms. Shubhangi Janifer                     Independent Director

STATUTORY AUDITOR

M/s. ABN & Co. Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.

004447C) Chartered Accountants, was appointed as Statutory

Auditors at 39th Annual General Meeting of the Company to hold

office for a period of 5 years from the conclusion of 39th Annual

General Meeting till the conclusion of 44th Annual General

Meeting of the Company.

According, they have conduced Statutory Audit for the 2024- 2025.

M/s ABN & Co. (FRN: 004447C), Chartered Accountantshave

audited the financial statements of the Company for the Financial

Year under review. The Auditors have issued an unmodified

opinion and do not contain any qualifications, reservations, or

adverse remarks on the financial statements, for the Financial

Year ended 31st March 2025.

The report of the Statutory Auditors along with notes to Schedules

is enclosed to this Report. The observations made in the

Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for

any further comments.

Further, M/s CLB &Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm

Registration No124305W), be and is hereby appointed as

Statutory Auditor for a period of 5 (five) years, to hold office from the

conclusion of this Annual general Meeting untill the conclusion of

the 49th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the

year 2030 in place of M/s ABN & Co. Chartered Accountant

(FRN-004447C) whose tenure expires at the conclusion of

ensuing Annual General Meeting.
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The Auditors have Confirmed their eligibility under Section 141 of

the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made their under.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUD

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditor in their report

have not reported any instances of frauds committed in the

Company by its Officers or Employees under section 143(12) of

the Companies Act, 2013.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

The Board of Directors had appointed M/s. R.K. Jain & Associates,

(Member ship No. F4584, Peer Review Certificate No. 1361/2021

valid upto 31.07.2026), Practising Company Secretaries, to

conduct Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year 2024-25 under the

provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Accordingly, they have conducted Secretarial Audit for the Financial

Year 2024-25 and Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 is

enclosed herewith in Annexure-I. Pursuant to provisions of

Regulation 24A  of Listing Regulations the Secretarial Auditors

have also issued Annual Secretarial Compliance Report for

the F.Y. 2024-25.

Pursuant to the provision of Section 204 of the Companies Act,

2013 and the Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 &  Regulation 24A of SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2015, the Board of Director at its meeting held on 28.05.2025 appointed,

M/s R. K. Jain & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries

(Membership No. FCS 4584; CP No. 5866 Peer Review

Certificate No. 1361/2021, valid upto 31.07.2026) a Peer Reviewed

firm of Practising Company Secretary, as the Secretarial Auditors

of the Company to conduct secretarial audit for the first term of five

consecutive years commencing from financial year 2025-26,

subject to approval of shareholders at the ensuing Annual

General Meeting.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with

The Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014,the Board of Director at

its meeting held on 28.05.2025, appointed M/s R.S  Pokharna and

Associates (Firm Registration No. 008560C), Chartered

Accountants as the internal auditors of the Company for the

financial year 2025-2026. The role of internal auditors includes

but not limited to review of internal audit observations and

monitoring of implementation of corrective actions required,

reviewing of various policies and ensure its proper implementation.

COST AUDITOR

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the

Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, cost audit and

maintenance of cost records is not applicable to the Company for

the Financial Year 2024-25. Therefore, requirement of cost

auditor is not applicable.

DIRECTOR KYC

The MCA as per Rule 12A of Companies (Appointment and

Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, mandated Director KYC

(DIR-3 KYC) / Web KYC who has been allotted a Director Identification

Number (DIN) and whose DIN status is approved on the Ministry

of Corporate Affairs within specified time period.

All the Directors of  the Company have complied with said requirement.

LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGE

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on BSE

(Bombay Stock Exchange) Limited. The Listing fee for the

financial year 2025-2026 has been paid by the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Your directors in form the Members that your Company is not

covered with in the scope of Section 135 of Companies Act

2013and the Rules framed there under. However, your

director’sendeavor to contribute to such causes as and when

deem appropriate.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

During the year 2024-25, the Board of Directors met six times on

24.05.2024, 05.08.2024, 06.09.2024, 11.11.2024, 02.01.2025 and

11.02.2025.

The details of number of Board Meetings and the attendance of

the Directors are provided in the Corporate Governance Report

forming part of the Board’s Report. The frequency and intervening

gap between the meetings were within the period prescribed

under the Companies Act, 2013.The maximum interval between

any two meetings did not exceed 120 days.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) read with Section 134 (3) (a) of the

Act,the Annual Return as on March 31, 2025 is available on

theCompany’s website on www.bhilspin.com,

www.bhilwaraspinners.com

DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

Pursuant to the provision of Section 178 of the Companies

Act,2013 and Regulation 19 read with Schedule II Part D of the

Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors on the recommendation

of Nomination and Remuneration Committee has frameda policy

for the appointment of Directors and Senior Management and

their remuneration.The policy forms part of the Board Report as

Annexure-II.

DECLARATION  BY INDEPENDENT  DIRECTOR

In terms of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and

Regulation16 of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing

Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015, the

Company has received declarations under section 149 (7) of the

companies act 2013, from all the Independent Directors of the

Company that they meet the criteria of independence, as

prescribed under the provisions of the Act and SEBI (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

as amended from time to time.

ANNUAL EVALUATION BY THE  BOARD

A formal evaluation of the performance of the Board, its committees

and the individual Directors was carried out for the Financial Year

2024-25 by the Board of Directors, the evaluation wascarried out

using individual questionnaires. The performance evaluation of

the respective Committees and that of Directors was done by the

Board excluding the Director being evaluated.The manner of



evaluation is mentioned in the Nomination and Remuneration

policy which forms part of Board report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS,  GUARANTEES  OR  INVESTMENTS

The Company has not made any investments, given guarantees,

or provided securities during the financial year under review.

The company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 of

the Companies Act, 2013 and details of the same has given in the

notes to the Financial Statements.

PARTICULAR OF CONTRACT OR  ARRANGEMENT  WITH

RELATED PARTIES

All the related party transactions entered during the financial year

are entered on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of

business. During the period under review, the Company had not

entered any contract / arrangement / transaction with related

parties which could be considered materialin accordance with

the Policy on Materiality of events and Dealing with Related Party

Transactions.

The details of Related Party Transactions during Financial year

2024-25 are provided in note no. 27 of financial statements.

The Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of

the Companies Act, 2013 and ListingRegulations in this regard.

There were no transactions requiring disclosure under Section

134(3) (h) of the Companies Act. Hence, the prescribed Form

AOC–2 does not form a part of this Annual Report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY

THE REGULATORS  ORCOURTS

There were no Significant and material orders passed by the

Regulators orcourts during the year.

RISK  MANAGEMENT  POLICY

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment

and prioritization of risks followed by coordinated efforts to

minimize, monitor and mitigate/control the probability and/or

impact of unfortunate events or to maximize the realization of

opportunities. The Company has laid down a comprehensive Risk

Assessment and Minimization Procedure which is reviewed by

the Board from time to time. These procedures are reviewed to

ensure that executive management controls risk through means

of a properly defined framework.

Directors review the risks associated with the Company on

a regular basis,but considering merger operations of the

Company the rewasneg ligible exposure to business risks.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Provisions relating to Corporate Governance Report under Schedule

V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 are applicable to the Company.

The Company is committed to maintain the high standards of

Corporate Governance and adhere to the requirements set out in

Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements),2015. Pursuant to regulation 34(3) of

the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),2015,

the Reports on Corporate Governance and Management

Discussions & Analysis have been incorporated in the Annual

Report and form an integral part of the Board’s Report. Certifi-

cate from the Secretarial Auditors of your Company i.e. M/S R.K.

Jain & Associates, Practicing Company Sectaries, regarding

compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance as

stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements), 2015 form part of Annual Report.

The Company also filed with the Stock Exchanges, the quarterly

Integrated  Report on Corporate Governance in terms of the

SEBI  (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

In pursuance of Section 177 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and

the regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations and with the objective

of pursuing the business in a fair and transparent manner by

adopting the highest standards of professionalism honesty, in-

tegrity, and ethical behavior and to encourage and protect the

employees who wish to raise and report their genuine concerns

about any unethical behavior,actual or suspected fraud or

violation of Company’s Code of Conduct, the Company has

adopted a Whistle Blower Policy.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Company has an internal control system commensurate

withits size and nature of business. These systems provide a

robust structure which in turns help in the complying of various

laws and status which automatically translates into Financial

and Operational Development of the Company.

The Company’s Audit Committee reviews adherence to internal

control systems and legal compliances.This committee reviews

all quarterly and yearly results of the Company and

recommends the same to the Board for it sapproval.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND

FOREIGN  EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information required to be disclosed pursuant to Section

134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 8 (3)

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is given in Annexure-

III framing part of the Report.

EMPLOYEES  REMUNERATION

The information pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial

Personnel) Rules 2014 of the employees is annexed as

Annexure- IV. Further directors inform the members that

pursuant to Rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personals) Rules, 2014, no

employee is drawing remuneration in excess of the limits

prescribed under the said provision.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

Our Company consider its Human Resources as the key to

achieve its objective. Keeping this in view, our Company take

utmost care to attract and retain quality employees. The

Company believes that, by effectively managing and developing

human resources, it can achieve its vision, a significant effort

has been under taken to develop leadership as well as technical

/ functional capabilities to meet future talent requirement.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING
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The Board has adopted a revised Code of Prevention of Insider

Trading based on the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations, 2015. All the Directors, senior management

Employees and other employees who have access to the

unpublished price sensitive information of the Company are

governed by this code.

During the year under Report, there has been due Compliance with

the said code of conduct for prevention of Insider trading.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN

AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL)

ACT, 2013

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and

harassment free workplace for every individual working in its

premises through various interventions and practices. The

Company always endeavors to create and provide an

environment that is free from discrimination and harassment

including sexual harassment.

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in

line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women

at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013

(“ POSH Act”). Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been

set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment.

All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are

covered under this policy.

PUBLIC DEPOSIT

During the period underreview your company has not accepted

any public deposit within the meaning of provisions of section 73

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies

(Acceptance of Deposits) Rule, 2014 and there is no outstanding

Deposit due forre-payment.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Company has constituted Audit Committee, Nomination &

Remuneration Committee, and Stakeholders Relationship

Committee.

The composition of the committees has been given in the Corporate

Governance Report which is integral part of the Board’s Report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING

THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE

OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE

COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT RELATE AND

THE DATE OF THE REPORT

There were no material changes and commitments that have

affected the financial position of the Company which have

occurred during the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025.

DIRECTOR’ SRESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act. 2013 the
Directors state that.

a) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts the applicable
Ac counting Standards have been followed and no material
depart ures have been made from the same

b)  Appropriate Accounting Policies have been selected
andapplied consistently and they have made Judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give atrue

and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company on 31st March.
2025 and of the Profit and Loss of Company for they earen de
dont hat date.

c) Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance

of adequate accounting records in accordance with the

provisions of this Act for safe guarding the assets of the c ompany

and for preventing and detecting fraud and otherirregularities;

d)   the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e)  Proper internal financial controls were in place and that financia

lcontrols were adequateand were operating effectively.

f)  Proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable aws were in place and weread equate and operating

effectively.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDING UNDER IN-

SOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016:

During the year under review, there were no applications made or

proceedings pending in the name of the Company under the

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

The Company has followed the guidelines of Accounting

Standards/IND–AS laid down by the institute of Chartered

Accountant of India in preparation off inancial state ment

OTHER  DISCLOSURES

Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting is requiredin

respect of the following items as there were no transactions on

the seitems during the financial year underreview :

i. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend,voting

or otherwise.

ii. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees

of the company under any scheme save and except ESOS re

ferred to in this report.

iii. The Company does not have any Holding, Subsidiary, Joint

  venture, or Associate Company during the year 2024-25.

iv. There is no change in the nature of businessof the Company.

v.  There were no frauds found which have been reported to the

 Audit Committee/Board members as well as to the Central

 Government.

vi. The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards

 issued by the Institute of Company  Secretaries of India on

 Board  Meetings and General Meetings.
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ANNEXURE-ITO DIRECTOR’S REPORT
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31stMARCH, 2025
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,

The Members,

Bhilwara Spinners Limited

26 Industrial Area, Bhilwara-311001 (Rajasthan)

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good

corporate practices by Bhilwara Spinners Limited [CIN:L17115RJ1980PLC008217] (hereinafter called the Company)

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by the company  and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has  during

the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed

hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent,

in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:-

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Bhilwara

Spinners Limited for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the provisions of: -

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under, as amended from time to time;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under, as amended from time to time;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under, as amended from time to time;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings. There was no transaction

relating FDI and ODI during the year under review. (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992

(‘SEBI Act’) as amended from time to time:

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021. (Not applicable to the

Company during the Audit Period)

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993

regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; Not Applicable

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (there were no events

requiring compliance during the audit period)

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018

(there were no events requiring compliance during the audit period)
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For R.K.Jain & Associates
Peer Review Certificate

No. 1361/2021
Place : Bhilwara

Date  : 28.05.2025

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021

(there were no events requiring compliance during the audit period);

j) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 (there

were no events requiring compliance during the audit period)

vi) All other relevant applicable laws including those specifically applicable to the Company, a list of which has been

provided by the management. The examination and reporting of these laws and rules are limited to whether

there are adequate systems and processes are in place to monitor and ensure compliance with those laws.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) The Secretarial Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange.

During the Audit Period, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,

Standards, etc. mentioned above except to the extent as mentioned below: -

1. As per Regulation 30(6) and Schedule III of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, Company has submitted the outcome of

Board Meeting to Stock Exchange with a delay of 5 minutes after the closure of the meeting. As informed by the

company, due precautions will be taken to avoid such delay in future.

2. As per Regulation 34(1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 Company has delayed filled the Annual Report to the

Stock Exchange for the Year ended 31.03.2024. As informed by the Company, clarification letter was sent to the

exchange.

3. As per Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, Company has not submitted the

Quarterly Compliance Certificate for maintenance of SDD for the Quarter ended 31.03.2024.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive

Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during

the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda, were

sent to them at least seven days in advance or as the case may be and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further

information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the

meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were

unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.

I further report that

there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company

to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that

during the Audit Period the company has not undertaken any events/action having a major bearing on the Company’s

affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards.

Note: This Report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms as an integral part

of this report.
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ANNEXURE "A"

To,

The Members,

Bhilwara Spinners Limited

26 Industrial Area,

Bhilwara-311001

Rajasthan

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance

about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on the

test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes

and practices I followed provide reasonable basis of my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of

the company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management Representation about the compliances of laws,

rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliances of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, stan

dards are the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of pro

cedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of

the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

CS R K Jain
Proprietor
FCS-4584
COP-5866

UDIN:F004584G000467442

For R.K.Jain & Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries

Place : Bhilwara

Date  : 28.05.2025
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CS R K Jain
Proprietor
FCS-4584
COP-5866

Peer Review No.1361/2021

UDIN: F004584G000467332

For R.K.Jain & Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries

To,

The Members,

Bhilwara Spinners Limited

26 Industrial Area, Bhilwara-311001 (Rajasthan)

I have examined the relevant regisisters, records forms, returns and disclosures received from the

Directors of Bhilwara Spinners Limited having CIN:L17115RJ1980PLC008217 and registered office at,

26 Industrial Area Bhilwara-311001, Rajasthan, India (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’),
produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with

Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors

Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and

explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the  Directors

on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial year ending on 31st March, 2025 have

been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the

Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Details of Director:

Place : Bhilwara

Date  : 28.05.2025

00132801

00132802

02624500

09298746

09125625

09077116

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)

(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

The eligibility for appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board of Directors is the responsibility of the

management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion based on the verification of the records

maintained by the Company, annual disclosure received by the Company from its Directors and verification of the

status of DIN data of the Directors available on the Ministry of Corporate Affairs Portal.

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

This certificate is based on the information and records available up to this date and I have no responsibility to

update this certificate for the events and circumstances occurring after the date of the certificate

Sr. No Director Identification Number  DINName of the Director

Ashok Kumar Kothari

Sushila Kothari

Anshul Kothari

Himanshu Jhamar

Shubhangi Janifer

Chitra Naraniwal

22 / 07 / 2010

12 / 02 / 2025

28 / 05 / 2024

30 / 08 / 2021

10 / 04 / 2023

07 / 10 / 2023

Date of appointment in the Company

1

2

3

4

5

6
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Economic overview

Ø  Global economy

In CY 2024, the global economy sustained its growth trajectory, recording a growth rate of 3.3%, despite on-going

geopolitical tensions, shifting trade dynamics, realignment of supply chains and alterations in monetary policy. In

response to these headwinds, governments worldwide prioritized policy reforms and aimed at prioritizing

innovation, enhancing supply chain resilience and promoting economic diversification to secure long-term stability.

In flationary pressures eased considerably over the year, with global inflation declining from 6.6% in CY 2023 to

5.7% in CY 2024. This decline was primarily due to effective monetary interventions and greater stability in energy

markets, which contributed to price stabilization and supported a broader economic rebound. Emerging Markets

and   Developing Economies (EMDEs) outpaced advanced economies with a growth rate of 4.3%, compared to 1.8%

in the latter. Their strong performance was catalyzed by robust domestic demand, increased Foreign Direct Invest

ment (FDI) and a strategic pivot towards reducing reliance on external trade

Ø  INDIAN TEXTILE INDUSTRY OVER VIEW/INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS
India’s textiles sector is one of the oldest industries in the Indian economy, dating back to several centuries. The

industry is extremely varied, with hand-spun and hand-woven textiles sectors at one end of the spectrum, while

the capital-intensive sophisticated mills sector on the other end. The decentralized power looms/ hosiery and

knitting sector forms the largest component in the textiles sector. The close linkage of textiles industry to agricul

ture (forraw materials such as cotton) and the ancient culture and traditions of the country in terms of textiles

makes it unique in comparison to other industries in the country. India’s textiles industry has a capacity to produce

wide variety of products suitable for different market segments, both within India and across the world. The

textilessector has witnessed a spurt in investment during the last five years.

Exports have been a core feature of India’s textile sector. Exports of both man-made textile and readymade

garments have seen a major boost. A major factor behind the robustness of India’s textile industry is its strong

production basewith awide rangeoffibresand yarns.Indiaisamongthetopproducers of juteand silk, and beyond its

natural fibres such as cotton, jute,silk and wool; and synthetic, its manmade fibres such as polyester, viscose,

nylon and acrylic have also created a niche for themselves in the market.

Ø  OPPORTUNITIES

Indian government has come up with a number of export promotion policies for the textiles sector. It has also

allowed 100 per cent FDI in the sector under the automatic route. The Company is at the growing stage and

expanding its business operations. As part of our commitment to increasing production capacity, we intend to

expand our product basket and export, grow our value added segment, realign our customer base and achieve

operational excellence.

Despite the aforementioned growth initiatives, we acknowledge the existence of certain market challenges,

including volatility in cotton prices and the availability of high-quality cotton crops. We also anticipate headwinds

in downstream segments, such as home textiles, while demand from the apparels segment continues to recover.

The domestic and exports textile markets may remain moderate for some more time. Furthermore, we anticipate

that changes in trade policies and fluctuations in foreign exchange rates may impact the prices of imported

materials, potentially affecting our competitive position in the global market.

To maintain a sustainable and resilient business, we have adopted several key principles. These principles in

clude cash conversion, in-depth knowledge of the textile market, supply chain resilience, Value added processes,

innovation, and a strong focus on customer satisfaction. These principles serve as critical enablers that set us apart

from our competitors and contribute to our ability to sustainably grow and prosper in the future.

Ø  REVIEW AND FUTURE OUTLOOK OF THE COMPANY

The Company is continuously trying  to accomplish the desired results. Steps have been taken for cost diminutionand

manufacturing quality products by various installed machineries of the Company. Various aspects of working

conditions of workers, health related issues, minimizing risk of accidents at work place etc. are being taken care

of by the Company. The Company will achieve more turnovers by various marketing strategies, offering more

quality products, etc. in coming years followed by increase in profit margin by way of various cost cutting tech

niques and optimum utilization of various resources of the Company.



Ø  THREATS/RISK,CONCERN AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUECY

The Company has received a legacy of well-established framework of internal controls of the businesses and

operations. The Company has adequate monitoring procedures and has appointed competent personnel to

safeguard itsas sets,protect loss from un authorized use or disposition ensuringreliably authorized, accurately

recorded and transparently reported transactions. Establishment of highly efficient management information

and reporting systems combined with robust corporate policies form the overall control mechanisms.

The Company conducts its business with integrity, high standards of ethical behavior and in compliance with all

applicable laws and regulations that govern its business. To supplement the internal control mechanism, the

Company appointed external independent internal audit agencies to carry out concurrent internal audit at all its

locations for its business. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has started to review the internal

control systems on a regular basis to improve their effectiveness besides verifying statutory compliances. The

Audit Committee shall meet periodically to discuss findings of the internal auditors along with the remedial

actions (i.e. Action Taken Report). The statutory audits are conducted by a well- qualified and experiences audit

agencies to ensure that the company’s practices are in line with global best practices. A compliance management

tool had also been adopted to ensure timely compliance with legal, financial, environmental, labour, governance,

safety and other relevant regulations.

Apart from the above, the Company believes that Risk Management and Internal Audit functions complement

each other to form an elaborate risk management system that evaluates the efficacy of the framework relating to

risk identification and mitigation. The Company strives to adopt a de-risking strategy in its operations while

making growth investments. This involves setting up and monitoring risks on a regular basis. The Company shall

continue to adopt Risk Management in a well- defined, integrated framework, which promotes awareness of

risks and an understanding of the Company’s risk tolerances. The management monitors the internal control

system, designed to identify, assess, monitor and manage risks, associated with the Company. Each risk is provided

with different number of control measures depending upon its potential impact and probability of occurrence.

The risk management framework incorporates both financial and non-financial risks.

Ø   HUMAN RESOURCES

In the Company, we are really proud of our “HUMAN RESOURCES”. We believe that our employees make a key

difference to our business success. Employees are one of our five key stakeholders and needless to mention that

managing our human capital has been our key strength and pride. It is our firm belief that nurturing and strength

ening the human resource capital is of utmost importance to run the organization effectively and smoothly.

Therefore, the HR function takes pride in managing the human capital both with warmth and care as a hallmark of

a caring organization. The Human Capital is managed in a structured manner with key focus areas being Talent

Management, Organizational capability Development, Employee Engagement and harmonious Industrial Relations.

Good humanre source management is vital for the success of any business,there fore,the Company regularlyre

views and revisitsits variousHRpoliciesand practicesto ensure that we comply with the values of the Company

and canbe bench marked against the leaders in the industry. Our HR mission emphasizes on creating a value

driven, high performancelearning organization in anengaged and digitized envir on ment so that we areone

among the employer of choice.

Ø   RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors of the Company has formed a Risk Management Committee to frame, implement and

monitor the risk management plan for the Company. The Committee is responsible for reviewing the risk man

agement plan and ensuring its effectiveness. The Committee considers the risks that impact mid- to long-term

objectives of the business, including those reputational in nature. The Company has an elaborate risk charter and

risk policy defining risk management governance model, risk assessment and prioritisation process. The Risk

Management Committee reviews and monitors the key risks and their mitigation measures periodically and

provides an update to the Board on Company’s risks outlined in the risk registers. The Audit Committee has

additional oversight in the area of financial risks and controls. Additionally, a third-party organisation has

benchmarked the Company’s risk management practice with various companies in India and globally and pro

nounced it as a leader in FMCG category
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Ø  DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

The Company’s financial performance with respect to operational performance is as under :
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(Rs. In Lakhs)

ØØØØØ   KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

The details of changes in the Key Financial Ratios for the Financial Year 2024-25 as compared to the immediately

previous Financial Year are provided under the Notes to Accounts to the Standalone Financial Statements and

hence, not repeated here for the sake of brevity. However, brief of the same is produced below:

1.01

1.46

4.12

4%

16.71

19.62

227.50

7 %

3.54

2%

5.00

1.16

22.11

19%

0.06

0.05

4.63

18%

0.95

4%

Current ratio

Debt-equity ratio

Debt service coverage ratio

Return on equity ratio

Trade receivables turnover ratio

Trade payables turnover ratio

Net capital turnover ratio

Net profit ratio

Inventory (Avg) Turnover Ratio

Return on capital employed

Ratio Current Period Previous Period

ØØØØØ   CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
This Management Discussion and Analysis Statement of the Annual Report has been included in adherence to the
spirit enunciated in the code of corporate governance approved by the Securities and Exchange Board of India.
Statement in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing Company’s objectives, projections, estimates,
expectation may be forward- looking statements within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations.
Actualresult could differ materiallyfrom thoseexpressed orimplied. Importantfactors thatcould make a difference
to the Company’s operation include economic conditions affecting demand/supply and price conditions in the
Government regulations, tax laws, other rules & regulation applicable to theCompany and other incidental factors.
Further, the discussion following herein reflects the perceptions on major issues as on date and the opinion
expressed here are subject to change without notice. The Company undertakes no obligations to publicly update
or revise any of the opinions of forward looking statements expressed in this report, consequent to new information
future events, or otherwise. Readers are hence cautioned not to place undue reliance on these statements and are
advised to conduct their own investigation and analysis of the information contained or referred to this statement
before taking any action with regard to specific objectives.

For the Year ended on
31 March 2025PARTICULARS

Revenue from Operations

Other In come

Total Income

Less: Operating and Administrative Expenses

Profit/ (Loss) before Depreciation, Extraordinary/ Exceptional Items and Taxes

Less: Depreciation and Amortization

Less: Extraordinary/Exceptional Items

Profit/(Loss)before Tax(PBT)

Less: Taxes (including deferred tax)

Profit/(Loss) after Tax (PAT)

Earnings Per Equity Share (Basicand Diluted)

249682001

1000365

250682366

212322585

38359781

7190183

6704005

24465593

7159477

17306115

1.91

94024013

1493979

95517992

59329096

36188896

204673

15033343

20950880

3611924

17338956

1.92

For the Year ended on
31 March 2024

Place   : Bhilwara

Dated  :  28.05.2025

sd/-

Anshul Kothari

Chairperson & Managing Director

DIN: 02624500

For and On Behalf of the Board



Annual Report 2024-2514

ANNEXURE-II to DIRECTOR’S REPORT NOMINATION &

REMUNERATION POLICY

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 &

Regulation19(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, every Listed

Company is required to constitute a Nomination and

Remuneration Committee with at least three directors,

where all directors of the committee shall be non-

executive directors & least at least two-thirdshall be

independent Directors.

The Company has a Nomination and Remuneration

Committee where all the directors are Non-Executive

Director and two-thirds of directors are independent

Directors.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and its

Policy being in compliance with the provisions of Section

178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 read

with Schedule II Part D of the Listing Regulations, 2015

applies to the Board of Directors, Key Managerial

Personnel and the Senior management Personnel of the

Company.

“Key managerial personnel (KMP) means and comprise-

π Managing Director & Chief Executive officer;

π Whole-time Director;

π Company Secretary;

π Chief Financial Officer;

π Such other Officer as may be prescribed.

Senior Management comprise the personnel of the

Company who are members of its core management

team, excluding the Board of Directors, comprising all

members of management one level below the Executive

Directors, including Functional Heads.

Role and Objective of the Committee :

1. To Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications,

positive attributes and independence of a director

and recommend to the board of directors a policy

relating to, the remuneration of the directors, key

managerial personnel and other employees.

2.   Identify persons who are qualified to become Director

and who may be appointed in senior management

positions in accordance with the criteria laid down in

the policy.

3. Recommend to the Board  the  appointment  and

removal of Directors and Senior Management.

4. Carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance.

5.    Formulate criteria for evaluation of independent

Directors and the Board.

6.    Recommend to the Board a Policy, relating to the

remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel

and senior management.

7.    To devise a policy on Board diversity.

8.    To ensure that the level and composition of remuneration

is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate

Directors of the quality required to run Company successful

9. To ensure the relationship of remuneration to performance

is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks.

10.  To ensure remuneration to directors, key managerial

personnel and senior management involves a balance

between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and

long-term performance objectives appropriate to the

working of the company and its goals.

11.   To perform such other functions as may be referred

by the Board or be necessary in view of the SEBI

(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations. 2015 and the provisions of the Companies

 Act, 2013 andRules madethereunder.

Membership :

1. The committee shall comprise at least Three (3)

Directors, all of which all the directors shall be Non-

Executive Directors and at least two third of them

shall be independent.

2.    Minimum two (2) members or one third of the members

of the committee, whichever is greater, including at

least one independent director in attendance shall

constitute a Quorum for a Committee meeting.

3.    Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in

the Annual Report.

4.    Term of the Committee shall be continued unless ter

minated by the Board of Directors.

Chairman :

1. Chairman of the Committee shall be an independent

Director.

2. Chairman of the Company may be appointment as a

member of the committee but shall not Chair the

Committee.

3. In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the

Committee present at the meeting shall choose one

amongst them to act as Chairman.

4. Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Com

mittee should be present at the Annual General

Meeting or may nominate some other member to

answer the shareholder’s queries.

Frequency of Meetings :

The nomination and remuneration committee shall

meet at least once in a financial year.
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Committee Member’s Interests :

1. A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present

when his or her own remuneration is discussed at a

meeting or when his or her performance is being

evaluated.

2. The Committee may invite such executives, as it

considers appropriate to be present at the meetings

of the committee.

Voting :

1. Matters arising for determination at Committee

meetings shall be decided by a majority of votes of

Members present and voting and any such decision

shall for all purposes, be deemed to be a decision of

the Committee.

2.     In the case of quality of votes the Chairman of the

meeting  will have a casting vote.

Appointment of Directors/ KMP/Senior Officials :

While recommending a candidate for appointment, the

Committee shall have regard to:

π Assessing the Appointee against a range of criteria

which include but not limited to qualification, skills,

experience, background, and other qualities required

to operate successfully;

π The experience and knowledge that the appointee

brings to the role of KMP/Senior Officials, which, in

turn, will enhance the skill sets and experience of

the Board as a whole;

π The nature of existing positions held by the appoin

tee including directorship and such other relation

ship and the impact of the same on the Company’s

welfare.

Letter of Appointment :

Each Director/KMP/Senior Official is required to sign the

duplicate copy of the letter of appointment issued by

the Company, which contains the terms and conditions

of his/ her appointment.

Policy on Board Diversity:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall

ensure that the Board of Directors have the Combination

of Directors from different areas/fields or as may be

considered appropriate in the best interests of the

Company. The Board shall have at least one Board member

who has accounting/financial management expertise.

Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel

and Senior Management:

The salaries of Directors, Key Management Personnel and

other senior officials shall be based and determined on

the individual person’s responsibilities and performance

and in accordance with the limits as prescribed

statutorily, if any

1. Fixed Pay :

Managerial Person, KMP and Senior Management shall

be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may be

approved by the Board on the recommendation of the

Committee in accordance with the statutory provisions of

the Companies Act, 2013, and the Rules made thereunder

for the time being in force. The salary paid need to be

competitive and reflective of the individual’s role,

responsibility, and experience in relation to performance

of day- to day activities to be usually reviewed on an

annual basis;

2.     Minimum Remuneration:

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its

profits inadequate, the Company shall pay remuneration

to its Managerial Person in accordance with the provisions

of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and if it is not

able to comply with such provisions, with the prior approval

of the Central Government.

3.     Provision for excess remuneration:

If any Managerial Person draws or receives, directly or

indirectly by way of remuneration any such sums in

excess of the limits prescribed under the Companies Act,

2013 or without the prior sanction of the Central

Government where required, he/she shall refund such

sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded,

Hold it in trust for the company. The Company shall not

waive recovery of such sum refundable to it, unless

permitted by the Central Government.

4.     Increment :

Increments to the existing remuneration/Compensation

structure may be recommended by the Committee to

the Board, which should be within the slabs approved by

the Shareholders in the case of Managerial Person.

Remuneration to Non-Executive/Independent Director:

1.     Remuneration/Commission :

The remuneration/ commission shall be in accordance

with the statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

and the Rules made there under for the time being in

force.

2.     Sitting Fees :

The Non-Executive/Independent Director may receive

remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of

Board or Committee (s) thereof, provided that the

amount of such fees shall not exceed the maximum

amount as provided by the Companies Act, 2013 per
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meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as

may be prescribed by the Central Government from time

to time.

Other Provisions:

Section 197 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that

the total managerial remuneration payable by the Com-

pany to its Directors including Managing Director and

Whole time Director, and its manager in respect of any

financial year shall not exceed eleven percent of the net

profits of the Company computed in the manner laid

down in Section 198 in the manner as prescribed under

the Act

π The Company with the approval of the shareholders

and Central Government, may authorize the payment

of remuneration exceeding eleven percent of the

net profit of the company, Subject to the provision

of Schedule V.

The Company may with the approval of the share

holders, authorize the payment of remuneration

upto five percent of the net profits of the Company

to its anyone Managing Director/Whole Time Director

/Manager and ten percent in case of more than one

such official

π The Company may pay remuneration to its director

other than managing Director and Whole Time Director

up to one percent of the net profits of the Company,

if there is a Managing Director or Whole Time Director

or Manager and three percent of the net profits if no

managing director is appointed.

π The independent Director Shall not be entitled to

any stock Option.

Evaluation/Assessment of Director/KMPs /Senior Offi-

cials of the Company

The evaluation/assessment of the Director, KMP’s and

the senior officials of the Company is to be conducted

on an annual basis and to satisfy the requirements of the

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulation, 2015.The Following Criteria may assist in

determining how effective the performance of the

Director/ KMPs/Senior officials has been:

π Leadership & stewardship abilities

π Assess policies, structures & procedures

π Regular monitoring of corporate result against

projections

π Contributing to define corporate objectives & plans

π Obtain adequate, relevant & timely information.

π Review achievement of strategic and operational

plans, objectives, budgets

π Identify, monitor & mitigate significant corporate

risks

π Directly monitor & evaluate KMPs, senior officials

π Review management’s Succession Plan

π Effective meetings

π Clearly defining role & monitoring activities of

Committees

π Review of ethical conduct

Evaluation following the aforesaid parameters, will be

conducted by the independent Director for each of the

Executive/Non-independent Directors in a separate

meeting of the Independent Directors.

The Executive Director/Non-independent Directors along

with the Independent Directors will evaluate/assess each

of the Independent Director relative to the aforesaid

paraments.  The Independent Director being evaluated

will not participate in the said evaluation discussion.

DEVIATIONS FROM THIS POLICY:

Deviation on elements of this policy, when deemed

necessary in the interests of the Company, will be made

if there are specific reasons to do so in an individual case.

Date  :  28.05.2025      For and on behalf of The Board

Place : Bhilwara

Anshul Kothari

Chairperson & Managing Director

DIN: 02624500



ANNEXURE - III to DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earning and

Outgo required under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

(a) Conservation Of Energy

The capital investment on Energy

Conservation Equipments.

The Management is continuously trying for reduction

of consumption of energy with a consequent impact

on the cost of production.

Place   :   Bhilwara

Dated  :  28.05.2025

 For and on behalf of The Board

Sd-

 Anshul Kothari

Chairperson & Managing

 Director

DIN 02624500
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(b) Technology absorption: Not Applicable

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: The total foreign exchange earnings

and outgo during the year is as under-

Total Foreign Exchange used (outflow) Rs. NIL

Total Foreign Exchange earned (inflow) Rs NIL

(i)

(ii)

The Steps taken or impact on

conservation of Energy

There are no such expenses incurred by the

Company.

The Company is using alternate sources of energy

wherever possible and feasible

The steps taken by the company for

utilizing alternate sources of Energy

(iii)
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ANNEXURE - IV TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT

DETAILS PERTAINNING TO RENUMERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197 (12) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5 (1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND

REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL)RULES, 2014

(i) the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company

for the financial year;

Median Salary for FY 2024-25 since there is only Two Employee of the Company,

the median cannot be calculate.

Name of the Director Remuneration for the Ratio

Financial Year 2024-25

(Rs. in lac)

Mr.AnshulKothari 0 0.00

*No remuneration is paid to Mr. Anshul Kothari Managing Director & CEO of the Company.

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary or

manager, if any, in the financial year

No remuneration is paid to Mr. Anshul Kothari Managing director & CEO of the Company.

(iii) The percentage in crease in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year;

% Increase in the MedianSince there are only two employees in the Company,

Median cannot be calculated.

(iv)     The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company;

No.of Permanent Employees There are 2(two)Employees ason31stMarch2025.

(v)     The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and Company performance:

Mr.Anshul Kothari Managing Director of the Company does not draw any remuneration.

(vi)     Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the Company:

The remuneration Paid to Key Managerial Personnel is in line with the performance of the Company.

(vii) Affirmation thatthe remunerationis asper theremuneration policyof thecompany.

Yes, it is affirmed that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company

Date : 28.05.2025

Place: Bhilwara

For and on behalf of The Board

Sd-

 Anshul Kothari

Chairperson & Managing Director

DIN 02624500

Name of the Director / Manager Remuneration for the Financial Year

2024-25 (Rs. in Lacs)
% Increase in remuneration

Anshul Kothari

B.S. Choudhary

Anjali Jain

Ritu Jhamnani

NIL

12.31

2.88

0.44

-

-

-

-
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ANNEXURE - V to  DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Statement of particulars of Employees. pursuant to Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

A. The name of the top Employee in terms of remuneration drawn.

Name of Employee Designation
Remuneration
(Rs. In Lacs) Qualification

Commencement
of Employment

No. of
Shares
Held

Whether
Premanent/
Contractual

Bhopal Singh Choudhary 12.31 M.COM 26 -08- 1986 1027 PERMANENTCFO

Persons employed throughout the financial year & paid Rs. one crore  two lac P.A. or more. NIL

No. employee is drawing remuneration in excess of the limits precribed under the said provision. : NIL

Persons employed part of the financial year and paid Rs. 8 lac 50,000 P.M. or more :- NIL

Experience
(Years)

39

Age
(years)

62

Anjali Jain 2.88 M.COM & C.S. 01- 02- 2022 175286 PERMANENT
Company
Secretary

03 35

S.
No.

1

2

B.

C.

Ritu Jhamnani 0.44 M.COM & C.S. 02- 01- 2025 0 PERMANENT
Company
Secretary

03 283

*No employee is a relative of any director or manager of the company.

 *Ms. Anjali Jain (upto 31.12.2024) & Ms. RituJhamnani (w.e.f 02.01.2025) is the company secretary of Bhilwara Spinners Limited.
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Corporate Governance 2024-25
Company's Philosophy on Corporate Governance

Company's Philosophy on Corporate Governance in compliance with Corporate Governance requirements as prescribed in
Regulation 34(3) read with Part C of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
as amended, the Company's Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended 31st March, 2025 is set out below for
information of the stakeholders and investors of the Company.

The Management of the Company believes that good companies are built on the foundation of ethical governance practices and
core values built over the years. Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance has been to adhere to the highest standards
of ethical behavior and fairness towards shareholders, employees, regulators, customers, suppliers, lenders and other stake-
holders. Corporate Governance refers to a combination of laws, regulations, procedures, implicit rules and good corporate
practices ensure that a Company meets its obligations to optimize shareholders' value and fulfil its responsibilities to the
Community, Customers, Employees, Government and other segments of Society. The Company believes that any meaningful
policy on Corporate Governance must empower the executive management of the Company. Board plays a crucial role in
overseeing how the management serves the short and long-term interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. Board
consists of eminent and competent professionals from different backgrounds who are constantly guiding the management in
putting in place the best systems, processes, and practice, and create an effective leadership team. Your Company is committed
on adopting the best practices of Corporate Governance as manifested in the Company's functioning to achieve business
excellence by enhancing long-term shareholders' value.

Composition of the Board

The Company has a balanced mix of Executive and Non-Executive Directors as on 31stMarch, 2025, comprising of 6 (Six)
Directors, out of which five Directors were non-executive. Among the Non- Executive Directors, three Directors were
Independent Directors (out of which two are Woman Directors) from diverse fields / professions. It is our belief that an
experienced & professional Board consciously creates a culture of leadership to provide a long-term vision and policy approach
to improve the quality of governance.

Board discharges its fiduciary relationships by providing guidance and independent view to the Company's Management. The
name and categories of Directors on the Board, their attendance at the Board meetings held during the year along with the
number of Directorship, Membership and Chairmanship held in various Committees in other Companies as on 31st March,
2025, are given below.

Number of Board Meetings

During 2024-2025 the Board of Dirctor's met Six times on 24thMay 2024,05th August, 2024, 06thSeptember, 2024,11th Novem-
ber, 2024,02ndJanuary, 2025 and 11thFebruary,2025.The frequency and intervening gap between the meetings were within the
period prescribed under the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards-1issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India (ICSI) on Meetings of the Board of Directors The maximum time gap between any two consecutive meetings was less than
hundred and twenty days.

The Company in consultation with all the directors of the Company prepares Tentative Calendar for the next Meetings of the
Board / Committee to ensure the presence of all the directors in the meetings. Agenda papers containing all the necessary
information are sent well in advance to all the directors of the Company to enable the directors to become aware of all the facts
on timely basis.

Directors' Attendance Record and Directorship Held

No. of
Meetings
held in

2024-25

No. of
Meetings

attended
in

2024-25

No. of outside
Director ships

of public
companies*

Name Director Category

Mr. Anshul Kothari

Mr. Ashok Kumar Kothari

Mrs Sushila Kothari

Mr.Himanshu Jhamar

Ms. Shubhangi Janifer

Mrs. Chitra Naraniwal

Promoter - Executive

Promoter - Non - Executive

Promoter - Non - Executive

Independent-Non Executive

Independent-Non Executive

Independent-Non Executive

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

-

-

-

-

2

3

No. of Outside Board-level
Committees where Chairperson

or member #

member** Chairperson

SI.
No.

1

2

3

4

5

6

-

-

-

-

2

2

-

-

-

-

0

3

Note:*Excludes Directorships in private limited companies' foreign companies' member ships of management committees of
various chambers, bodies and section 8 companies

#includes Audit and Stakeholder's Relationship Committees only.

**Includes Committee Chairmanships
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

As permitted under applicable laws, the Board has delegated certain functions to its various committees that are established

for that purpose. These committees conduct detailed reviews of the items under their purview before presenting them to the

Board for its consideration& approval.

The Board has constituted the following Committees to take informed decisions in the best interests of the Company in

accordance with the provisions of the Act and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015.

I.  Audit Committee

The Company has formed audit committee pursuant to regulation 177 of companies act, 2013 & Regulation 18 of the SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015. As on 31st March, 2025, Audit Committee comprised

three members namely Mr. Himanshu Jhamar, Ms. Shubhangi Janifer, and Mrs. Chitra Naraniwalall the three are Non-Executive

Independent Director.

The  Audit Committee met 4 times during the year on 24th May, 2024, 05th August, 2024,11th November 2024 and 11th February, 2025.

Details & Composition of the Audit Committee:

Mr. B.S. Choudhary Chief Financial Officer of the Company was the Secretary to the Committee who has since been acting

as Secretary to the Committee. Invitees to the Audit Committee include the representative of the Statutory Auditors.

Number of Equity
Shares Held

Name Director Category

Mr. Ashok Kumar Kothari

Mrs Sushila Kothari

Mr.Himanshu Jhamar

Ms. Shubhangi Janifer

Mrs. Chitra Naraniwal

Promoter - Non- Executive

Promoter - Non - Executive

Independent-Non Executive

Independent-Non Executive

Independent-Non Executive

70000

100038

11691

NIL

NIL

Convertible
Warrants

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

The Previous Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on 21stAugust, 2024 and was attended by Mr. Ashok Kumar
Kothari, Director, Mr. Anshul Kothari, Managing Director, Mrs. Sushila Kothari, Director, Ms. Shubhangi Janifer, Mrs. Chitra
Naraniwal, & Mr. Himanshu Jhamar Independent Directors of the company.

None of the Directors hold directorship in more than ten public companies and does not serve as a Director in more than seven
listed companies, across all their directorships held, including that in the Company. Further, none of the Directors is a member
of more than 10 Board level committees and Chairman of 5 such committees across all the Public Companies in which he/she
is a director.

The information placed before the Board includes ;

The Board has complete access to all information about the Company. The following information is regularly provided to the
Board

π Quarterly results for the Company and operating divisions and business segments.

π Minutes of the meetings of the Audit Committee and other Committees of the Board.

π Information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the level of Board, including the appointment or
removal of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary.

π Any material default in financial obligations to and by the Company or substantial nonpayment for goods sold by the Company.

π  Sale of material nature of investments, subsidiaries, assets, which is not in the normal course of business.

π  Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory, or listing requirements and shareholders service such as non-payment of
dividend, delay in share transfer among others.

Shareholding of Non-executive Directors

Equity shares and Convertible Instruments held by Non-Executive Directors as on 31st March, 2025.

Name of the Member Category

Non- Executive -Independent

Non- Executive -Independent,

Non- Executive -Independent,

No. of Meetings
held during tenure

No. of Meeting
Attended

Chairman

Member

Member

Designation

Mr. Himanshu Jhamar

Ms. Shubhangi Janifer

Mrs. ChitraNaraniwal

4

4

4

4

4

4
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The Chairman of the Audit Comittee attended the Annual General Meeting held on 21St August 2024 and was avilable to answer

shareholder queries.

Company has performed all functions mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee as listed under SEBI (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations , 2015.

Bhilwara Spinners Limited has Systems and procedures in place to ensure that

Audit Committee mandatorily reviews wherever applicable :

π Management Discussion and Analysis of the financial condition and results of  the Company

π Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by the management

π Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditors

π The uses/ applications of funds raised through public issues rights issues, preferential issues by major category (capital

expenditure, sales and marketing, working capital among others), as part of the quarterly declaration of finacial results

whenever applicable

π Statement certified by the Statutory Auditors, On an annual basis detailing the use of funds raised through public issues,

rights issues, preferential issues for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/ prospectus/ notice if applicable

The Audit Committee is empowered to :

π Investigate any activity within its terms of reference and to seek any information it requires from any employee

π Obtain legal or other independent professional advice and to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant experience

and expertise, when considered necessary

II. Nomination and remuneration Committee

The Company has formed Nomination and Remuneration committee, pursuant to regulation 178 of companies act, 2013 &

Regulation 19of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015. As on 31st March 2025,

Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised of four members namely Ms. Shubhangi Janifer, Mr. Himanshu

Jhamar, Mr. Anshul Kothari, and Mrs. Chitra Naraniwal. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 3 (three) times

during the year on 05th August, 2024, 11th November, 2024 and 11th February, 2025.

a) Terms of reference

The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuuneration Committee are in line with the Provision as contained in section 178

of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

which included the following :-

π Identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance

with the criteria and recommend to the Board their approval and removal.

π Carry out the evaluation of directors perofrmance

π Formulate the criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes and independence of a director.

π Recommend to the Board a policy relating to the  remuneration for the directors, KMP and other Employees.

π Carry out such other functions as are required or appropriate in discharging their duties.

π Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors.

π To determine whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of Independent Director on the basis of the report of

performance evaluation of Independent Directors.

b) Details & Composition of the Committee

The details of member's attendance at the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting during the year are given below:

22

Ms. Shubhangi Janifer

Mr.Himanshu Jhamar

Mr. Anshul Kothari

Mrs. Chitra Naraniwal

Name of the Member Category
No. of Meetings

held during tenure
No. of Meeting

Attended
Designation

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Non- Executive -Independent

Non- Executive -Independent

Non- Executive -Non- Independent

Non- Executive -Independent

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3



Annual Report 2024-2523

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and relevant provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 the Company has framed a policy relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial

Personnel and Senior Management which is approved by the Board of Directors on the Recommendation of the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, inter alia, incluides detemination of salary, perquisites,

commission to be paid to the Company's Managing Directors (s) and whole time Directors, recommend to the Board

retirement benefits to be paid to the Managing Director (s) and whole time directors The compensation terms of Executive

Directors are approved by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

and subsequently approved by the shareholders in the General Meeting The Nomination and Remuneration Committee

recommends the remuneration based on the criteria such as responsibilities given, past track record of performance

industry standards and various other factors.

Remuneration of Directors

Remuneration Paid to Directors for 2024-25

During the year ended the 31st March, 2025 the Company did not advance any loans to any of its Directors. The Company does

not have any Stock Option scheme.

III. Stakeholders Relationship & Investors' Grievances Committee

The Company has formed Stakeholders' Relationship Committee, pursuant to regulation 178 of companies act, 2013 & Regulation

20 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015.

As on 31st March, 2025, the Company's Stakeholders' Relationship Committee comprised of Four Directors Mr. Himanshu

Jhamar (Chairman), Ms. Shubhangi Janifer ,Mrs. Sushila Kothari and Mrs.Chitra Naraniwal (Members)

The Committee mainly look in to the matters pertaining to Redressal of the Stakeholders' grievances and related matters.The

Committee received 5 complaints from the shareholders during the financial year under review.

No Stakeholders Grievance remained unattended /pending for more than 15 days. There were no complaints pending disposal

as on the 31st March, 2025. No request for dematerialization of Equity Shares of the Company was pending for approval as at

the 31st March 2025.

During 2024- 25, the Committee met four times on 24th May 2024, 05th August 2024, 11th November 2024 and 11th February,2025.

The Company also has a Share Transmission Committee to deal with the requests of transmission of Equity Shares, Issue of

duplicate share Certificates and Consolidation / Replacement of Share Certificates re-materialization of shares etc.

The Share Transfer Committee presently comprises of:

1) Mr .Himanshu Jhamar 2) Mrs. Sushila Kothari 3) Mrs.ChitraNaraniwal

The Share Transmission Committee of the Company meets as often as required under the chairmanship of Mr.Himanshu

Jhamar. All valid requests for share transmission received during the year have been acted upon by the Company within the

stipulated time limit.

To expeditiously approve transmission of shares, Mr. Himanshu Jhamar and Mr.B.S. Choudhary – Chief financial Officer also

attend and approve the Share Transmission Requests on forthnightly basis under the delegated authorization of the Board of

Directors.

Sitting
fees

Salaries,
allowances and

Perquisites
ComissionName  of  Director Category Total

Promoter -Executive

Promoter - Non - Executive

Promoter - Non - Executive

Independent-Non Executive

Independent-Non Executive

Independent-Non Executive

-

-

-

3000

3000

3000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3000

3000

3000

Mr. Anshul Kothari

Mr. Ashok Kumar Kothari

Mrs Sushila Kothari

Mr.Himanshu Jhamar

Ms. Shubhangi Janifer

Mrs. Chitra Naraniwal
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Nature of Requests No. of requests Received
during the year

Duplicate Share Certificates

Consolidated / Torn Certificates

No. of Shares Received
during the year

0

0

0

0

Details & Composition of committee

24

RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT

A qualified practicing Company Secretary carries out a Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit to reconcile the total admitted

capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total

issued and listed capital and places the report for the perusal of the Board.

The report confirms that the total issued and listed capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and

the total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL & CDSL.

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the year under review, the independent director met once on 24th May, 2024 to:

i. Evaluate the performance of non -independent director and the board as the whole;

ii. Evaluate the performance of the executive director of the company;

iii. Evaluate the quality, quantity, and flow of information between the executive management and board.

All the Independent Directors have given declaration that they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under Sec-

tion149 (6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. All the Independent Directors have included their

names in Independent Director's data bank maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs ('IICA') in terms of Section

150 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and

completed the online proficiency test conducted by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs, wherever required. It is hereby

confirmed that in the opinion of Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified under the Listing Regulations

and Companies Act, 2013 and they are independent of Management.

No Independent Director has resigned during the year.

The Independent Directors do not have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company, Promoters or

Management, which may affect their judgement in any manner.

In Compliance with the Act and Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015,

the Independent Directors Meeting of the Company was held on24th May, 2024. The Independent Directors discussed and

reviewed the matters specified in Regulation 25(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations.

2015. MrHimanshu Jhamarwas chairman at the meeting of Independent Directors.

Details & Composition of committee

Mr.Himanshu Jhamar

Ms. Shubhangi Janifer

Mrs. Sushila Kothari

Mrs. Chitra Naraniwal

Name of the Member Category
No. of Meetings

held during tenure
No. of Meeting

Attended
Designation

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Non- Executive -Independent

Non- Executive -Independent

Non- Executive -Non- Independent

Non- Executive -Independent

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

Mr.Himanshu Jhamar

Ms. Shubhangi Janifer

Mrs. Chitra Naraniwal

Name of the Member Category
No. of Meetings

held during tenure
No. of Meeting

Attended
Designation

Chairman

Member

Member

Non- Executive -Independent

Non- Executive -Independent

Non- Executive -Independent

1

1

1

1

1

1
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One Special Resolutions were up in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting.

POSTAL BALLOT/ E-VOTING

During the year under review, no resolution was passed through Postal Ballot and E-voting.Except at AGM

DISCLOSURES

Related Party Disclosure

All the related party transactions are entered on arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of business during the financial

year. The Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of the Listing Regulations in this regard. There were no

materially significant transactions with related parties during the financial year that may have potential conflict with interest of

listed entity at large.As required by the Accounting Standard AS-18, the details of Related Party Transactions are given in Note

27 (4) to the Annual Accounts.Suitable disclosure as required by the Ind AS 24 has been made in the notes to the Financial

Statements.

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment in preparation of Financial Statements

The Company has adopted Ind As and the adoption was carried out in accordance with Ind As 101

Risk Management

The Company has a well-defined risk management framework in place. Under this framework, the Management identifies and

monitors business risks on a continuous basis and initiates appropriate risk mitigation steps as and when deemed necessary.

The Company has established procedures to periodically place before the Board the risk assessment and minimization

procedures being followed by the Company and steps taken by it to mitigate those risks through a properly defined framework

Initiatives on Prevention of Insider Trading Practices

In compliance with the SEBI regulation on prevention of insider trading, the Company has instituted a comprehensive code of
conduct forits management staff. The Codelays down guidelines, which had vises the monprocedures to be followed and
disclosures to be made, while dealing with shares of Bhilwara Spinners Limited, and cautions them on consequences of
violations.

The Company follow sclosure of trading window priorto the publication of pricesensitive information. The Company has been in
forming the directors, senior management personnel and other persons covered under the code and advise the mnottotradein
Company's securities during the closure of trading window period.

Compliance with Regulation 34 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and disclosure Requirements) regulation,2015

In accordance with the provisions of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para C Sub clause (10) (i) of the Listing Regulations,
the Company has obtained a certificate from Practicing Company Secretary confirming that none of the Directors on the Board

General Body Meetings

Details of the Previous Annual General Meetings

Three Special Resolutions were taken up in the last three Annual General Meetings.

Previous Extra Ordinary General Meetings

Time LocationYear Date

23rd Setember,
2022

11.00 am2021-22

22nd Setember,

2023
11.00 am

Special resolution (s) Passed

26 industrial area
Bhilwara Rajasthan -311001

2022-23

21st August ,
2024 11.00 am2023-24

Day

Friday

Friday

Wednesday

26 industrial area

Bhilwara Rajasthan -311001

26 industrial area
Bhilwara Rajasthan -311001

Appointment of Mr. Satya Naryan Gaggar
(DIN 09697213) as Independent Director

Regularize appointment of

Ms. Shubangi Jaifer (DIN : 09125625) as
Independent Director

Appointment of Mr. Anshul Kothari
(DIN 09697213) as Managing Director

Time LocationYear Date

23rd Setember,
2022

11.00 am2022-22

Special resolution (s) Passed

26 industrial area
Bhilwara Rajasthan -311001

Day

Friday
Regularize appointment of
Mrs. Chitra Naraniwal (DIN : 09077116)  as
an Independent Director
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of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the

Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The certificate is annexed

with the report.

Audit Qualifications.

The Company's Financial Statements are free from any qualifications by the Auditors and Company continues to adopt best

practices to move towards a regime of Unqualified Financial Statements.

Management Discussion and Analysis

Senior Management personnel (Promoters, Directors, Management, or relatives etc.) have made disclosure to the Board

relating to all material, financial and other transactions stating that they did not have any personal interest that could result in

a conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

Whistle Blower Policy

With the objective of pursuing the business in a fair and transparent manner by adopting the highest standards of professionalism

honesty, integrity, and ethical behavior and to encourage and protect the employees who wish to raise and report their genuine

concerns about any unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of Company's Code of Conduct, the Company

has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy. The Company has adopted a frame work whereby the identity of the complainantis not

disclosed. During the year, the company did not receive any whistle Blower reference.

Director / CFO Certification

As required under Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, the CEO/CFO certificate for the financial year 2024-25 signed by

Mr. Anshul Kothari , Managing Director and Mr. Bhopal Singh Choudhary ,CFO, was placed before the Board of Directors of the

Company at its meeting held on May 28, 2025 and is also forms a part of this Annual Report.

Code of Conduct

Bhilwara spinners' Limited board has Iaid down a Code of Conduct for all Board members and Senior Management of the

Company.The Company is committed to conduct its business in accordance with the pertinent laws, rules and regulations and

with the highest standards of business ethics. Board Members and designated Senior Management Officials have affirmed

compliance with the Code of Conduct for the current year.

Declaration of compliance with the code of conduct signed by the managing director is also attached forms part of annual

report.

Means of Communication

The effective communication of information is very essential component of Corporate Governance. The main channel of

communication to shareholders is through Annual Report which inter-alia includes the Board's Report, the Report on Corporate

Governance and Audited Financial Statements.

The Quarterly financial results are approved by the Board of Directors and submitted to the Stock Exchanges. The Quarterly

financial results are published in one prominent English newspaper in the “MINT” and one Hindi newspaper in the “DainikLokjeevan”.

Quarterly /Annual results

Thequarterly & annual audited results are forthwith sent to the stock exchanges where the Company's shares are listed after

they are approved by the Board of Directors, the results of the Company are published in accordance with Regulation 47 of

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 in at least one prominent English newspaper in the

“MINT” and one Hindi newspaper in the “Dainik Lokjeevan”.

The Company has investor's email -id:bhilspinbs@gmail.com

Shareholders

Appointment or Reappointment of Independent Director and Promoter Director

One Director of your Company are liable retire by rotation. Of these Directors, at least one-third retires every year and if eligible,

propose them selves for there- appointment. This year, Mrs. Sushila Kothari (DIN: 00132802) is retiring by rotation and being

eligible, offer herself or re-appointment in the Annual General Meeting.
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Stock Exchange Scrip ID Scrip code

514272BHILSPINBSE

ADDITIONAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Annual General Meeting

Date : 24th September 2025

Day : Wednesday

Time : 11.00 AM

Venue: 26, Industrial Area Gandhi Nagar Bhilwara (Rajasthan) 311001.

Financial Results

Financial year:1st April,2024 to 31st March,2025

For the year ended 31st March, 2025, results were announced on:

π 05th August, 2024 : First quarter

π 11th November, 2024 : Second quarter and Half year

π 11th February, 2025 : Third quarter and 9 months

π 28th May, 2025 : Fourth quarter and Annual.

For the financial year ending 31st March, 2025, quarterly results were announced within 45 days from the end of each quarter

except fourth quarter, when the audited annual results were published within 60 days.

Book Closure

The dates of book closureare from 18th September 2025 (Thursday) to 24th September 2025 (Wednesday) (Both days  inclusive).

Dividend Dates

No dividend has been recommended on the Equity Shares.

Listing and Stock Codes

The Company's Equity shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE). Listing fee as prescribed has been

paid to the BSE up to 31stMarch, 2025. The scrip code of the Company at BSE is given below:
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Source : BSL Limited

Source : BSL Limited
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Shareholding Pattern

Shareholding Pattern by Ownership as on 31st March, 2025

Categories PercentageNo. of shares

Promoters, Directors, Relatives and Associates

Foreign institutional Investors

Mutual funds

Nationalised and other banks

Financial Institution & Insurance Companies

Public

Total

5086581

-

2200

-

-

3964849

9053630

56.18

-

0.02

-

-

43.79

100

Sharehodling Pattern by Size-Class as on 31st March 2025

Categories % of ShareholdingNo. of shares

Upto 500

501-1000

1001-10000

10001 and above

Total

1053626

239778

608293

7151933

9053630

11.64

2.65

6.72

79.00

100

No. of Sharcholders % of Shareholding

92.88

3.80

2.63

0.69

100

7166

293

203

53

7715

Dematerialisation of Shares

As on 31st March, 2025, 8234830 Equity Shares representing 90.96 percent of the total equity capital were held in dematerialized

form. Trading in shares of the Company is permitted in dematerialized form only.

The ISIN number for Bhilwara Spinners Limited equity shares on NSDL and CDSL is INE436CO1014.

Details of Public Funding Obtained in the Last Three Years

Bhilwara Spinners Limited has not obtained any public funding in the previous years.

Investor Correspondence

Investor correspondence should be addressed to:

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent:

MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited,

179 - 180, DSIDC Shed,3rd floor  Okhla Industrial Area,

Phase- 1, New Delhi – 110020

Phone No.: 011 - 41406149 /41406150 /41406151

Fax No.: 011 – 41709881

E-mail:admin@mcsdel.com/admin@mcsregistrars.com
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Compliance Officer

Bhilwara Spinners Limited

26, Industrial Area

Gandhi Nagar Bhilwara

Rajasthan -311001

Phone Nos. : 01482-246461

Fax Nos. : 01482-246461

E-mail : bhilspinbs@gmail.com

Web. :           www.bhilspin.com, www.bhilwaraspinners.com

Registered Office

26,Industrial Area

Gandhi Nagar-Bhilwara

Rajasthan-311001

Other information to the Sharesholders

Green Initative

As a responsible Corporate cittizen, the Company welcome the Green Initative by sending the communications/docments

including Notices for General Meeting and Annual Reports from time to time in electronic mode to those members who have

provided thir e-mail addresses to their Depository Participants (DP).

Shareholders who have not registered their e-mail addresses are requested to register/ update their e-mail addresses in

respect of equity shares held by them in demat form with their e-mail address in respect of equity shares held by them in

demat form with their respective DPs and in case of physical form with the Company.

Internal Complaints Commitee (ICC)

As per the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohitibition and Redressal) Act, 2014 which came into

effect from te 9th of December 2014, the Company has formulated a Internal Complaints Committee that will ensure a work

environmnet free of all forms of sexual harassment verbal, written, physical, visual or otherwise.

The Committee is formed as per the statute it is headed by a women Director, it has adequate independent representation of

women from ths social and legal fields. It lays down the whole procedure of filling complaint, enquiry, redressal of greiveance

and taking action against those who are found guilty by Committee in a fairly transparent manner. During the year under

review no incident of sexual harassment was reported.

Unpaid/Unclamied Dividends
There were no amount of unpaid/unclaimed dividend was pending with the Company from last seven years because the

company has not declared since last many years. in view of the same Company had not transferred any dividend amount and

shares which s unpaid/ unclaimed to the Demat account of IEPF Authority as per the provisions of Sections 124 and 125 of

Companies Act. 2013 and read with Investor Education and protection Fund (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rule

notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

Place : Bhilwara
Dated : 28-5- 2025

sd/-
ANSHUL KOTHARI

Chairperson & Managing Director

DIN : 02624500

For and On  Behalf of the Board
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION

[Regulation 17 (8) of the Listing Regulations]

We Anshul Kothari , Managing Director and Bhopal Singh Choudhary, Chief  Financial Officer, of  Bhilwara Spinners

Limited, hereby certify to the Board that :

(a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement of the year and that to the best of our knowledge and

belief :

(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that

might be misleading;

(ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing

accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by Bhilwara Spinners Limited during the

year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct.

(c) We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting in Bhilwara Spinners Limited

and we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting.

We have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal

controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee

(i) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year.

(ii) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and the same have been disclosed in the notes to the

financial statements; and

(iii) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management

or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system.

For BHILWARA SPINNERS LIMITED

Place : Bhilwara

Date : 28 May 2025

ANSHUL KOTHARI

Managing Director
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BHOPAL SINGH CHOUDHARY

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT

I,Anshul Kothari, Managing Director, hereby confirm and declare that in terms of Regulation 26 (3) read with Schedule V of

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all the Board

Members and Senior Managerial Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for Board of

Directors and Senior Management Personnel for the FY 2024-25.

                                                      For Bhilwara Spinners Limited

Place: Bhilwara Anshul Kothari

Date:    28.05.2025 Chairperson & Managing Director



COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In terms of Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V (E) of SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To

The Members of

Bhilwara Spinners Limited

26 Industrial Area,

Bhilwara-311001, Rajasthan

I have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Bhilwara Spinners Limited

(“the Company”) for the year ended on 31st March, 2025 as stipulated under Securities and Exchange Board of

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred as “Listing

Regulations”).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. My examination

was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with

the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial

statements of the Company.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me, I certify that the

Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Listing Regulations.

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the

efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
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For R.K. Jain & Associates,
Practicing Company Sectaries

Date : 28-05-2025
Place : Bhilwara

R.K. Jain
Proprietor

FCS: 4584
COP : 5866

Peer Review No. 1361/2021
UDIN : F0045G000467156
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of M/s. BHILWARA SPINNERSLIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements & Opinion

1. Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BHILWARA SPINNERS LIMITED (“the Company”),

which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of

changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statements for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial

statements, includinga summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid

standalone financial statementsread with significant Accounting Policies as mentioned in Note (1)  and other

Notes on Accounts as mentioned in Note (27) to Accounts, give the information required by the Companies

Act, 2013(‘the act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting

principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and Profit,

Changes in Equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)

of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the

Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit

of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of

our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are no key Audit matters to

be communicated in our report.

4.    Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report

including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s

Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the

standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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5.    Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The management and Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for the matters stated in Section

134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements

that give a true and fair view of the financial position and  financial performance  of the Company in accor

dance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards speci

fied under Section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

This responsibility includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions

of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates

that are reasonable and prudent; design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

controls, that are operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,

or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

6.    Auditor’s Responsibilityfor the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes

our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted

in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

7.    Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government

of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure “A”,  statement on the

matters Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.    As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a)   we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and

belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b)   in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears

from our examination of those books;

c)    the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the books of account;

d)   in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the applicable Accounting Standards specified

under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 ;

e)   on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025, and taken on

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025, from being

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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Place : Mumbai

Date  :  28th MAY, 2025

f)     With respect to the adequacy and operative effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial

reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion, on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of

the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g)   With respect to other matters to be included in Auditors’ Reportin accordance with requirements of Section

197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration

paid by the Company to its Directors,if any during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section

197 of the Act.and

h)   In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we report as

under with respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014:

i.      The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial statements- Refer Clause (1) of

Note(27)to the financial statements.

ii.      The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts; as such the question of

commenting on any material foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

iii.      There has not been any occasion in case of the Company during the year under report to transfer any sums

to the Investor Education and Protection Fund, so the question of delay in transferring such sums does not arise.

iv.      a) The management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been

advanced or loaned  or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources

or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities

(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Interme

diary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been

received by the company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding  Parties”),

with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by

or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on the audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,

nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-

clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The company has not paid any dividend during the year.

vi Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software  for

maintaining its books of account which has have the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same

has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software Further, during the course of

our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with we have been informed

by the management that that audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per statutory requirment

For ABN & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 004447C

CA S.C. KABRA
Partner

(M. N.: 035604)
UDIN: 25035604BMJLFQ2787
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ANNEXURE “A”

TO THE AUDITORS” REPORT OF BHILWARA SPINNERS LTD

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2025
(Referred to in paragraph 7 (1) Our Report of even date)

On the basis of such checks, as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to

us during the course of our audit, we report that:

(i)   (a) The Company has maintained proper records to show full particulars, including quantitative details and situation

of Property, Plant and Equipment. There is no Intangible Assets held by the Company.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified at the end of year by the management, which in our

opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its Assets.  According to the

information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) Based on our examination of registered agreements, property tax receipts and other documents and according

to the information & explanations given, records examined and based on the examination of other documents

provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land & buildings,

are held in the name of the company as at the balance sheet date.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and

intangibleassets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025

for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016)

and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a)  During the year, the inventories have been physically verified at reasonable intervals by the management

except Goods in Transit and Stock lying with third parties, if any and in our opinion,  coverage and procedure of

such verification  by the management was appropriate.

(b) As informed to us, no discrepancy of 10% or more in aggregate was noticed on physical verification of any class of

inventory.

(c)  The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ? 5 crore, in aggregate, during the

year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Hence, reporting under

clause 3 (ii)(c) of the order is not applicable.

iii) The Company has not  made any investments in, companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships and not granted

any loan secured/unsecured or provided and security or guarantee during the year and hence reporting under

clause 3 (a) to 3(f) of the order is not applicable.

iv)   The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,   2013 in respect of

loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

v)  The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting under

clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi)   As informed to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)

of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of manufacturing activities of the company and such accounts

and records have not been made and maintained by the company.

vii)  In respect of statutory dues:

(a)  In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including

Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty

of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the

appropriate authorities. There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,

Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of
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Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than

six months from the date they became payable.

(b)  There were no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on March

31, 2025 on account of disputes.

viii)  There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as

income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix) (a) According to the records of the company examined by us and as per the information and explanations given to

us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowings to any financial institution, Bank,

government. The Company has not issued any Debenture during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or   government or

any government authority.

(c )  According to the information and explanation given and on the basis of verification of records of the company,

the Company has applied the term loan for the purpose for which the loan was taken.

(d )The company has not raised any short term funds during the year hence, reporting under    clause 3 (ix)(d) of

the order is not applicable.

(e)   On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds

from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f)  The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in the subsidiaries,

associates or joint venture and hence reporting under clause 3 (ix) (f) of the order is not applicable.

x)   (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt

instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or

convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is

not applicable.

xi)   (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the

Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as pre

scribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the

year and up to the date of this report.

(c) No whistle blower complaints was received by the Company during the year (and upto the date of this report),

so Clause

3(xi) ( c) of the Order is not applicable.

xii)   The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii)  In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to

applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed

in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv) (a) The Internal audit is being carried out by the external chartered accountants. In our opinion the internal audit

system is commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the Internal Auditors report during the course of our audit.

xv)   In our opinion during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or

persons connected with its directors. Therefore provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not

applicable to the Company.

xvi)  (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the   Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934.Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.



Annual Report 2024-2538

Place: Mumbai

Date: 28th May, 2025

(b)  In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the   Core Investment

Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi) (b) of the Order is

not applicable.

xvii)   The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered under  the audit and in the

immediately  preceding financial year.

xviii) There has not been resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment

of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the

Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the

assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty

exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities

existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance

sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We

further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any

guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet

date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx)  The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 1956 regarding Corporate Social Responsibility are not

applicable to the Company, so clause 3(xx) (a) and (b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For ABN & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 004447C

CA S.C. KABRA
Partner

(M. N.: 035604)
UDIN: 25035604BMJLFQ2787
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF
 M/s. BHILWARA SPINNERSLIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 7(2) (f) under “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date)

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING UNDER CLAUSE

(I) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of BHILWARA SPINNERSLIMITED (“the

Company”) as of 31 March 2025in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company

for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on “the

internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the

timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based

on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls

Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the

Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an

audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal

financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in

all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls

system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over finan-

cial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing

the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal

control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the

assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We be-

lieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on

the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assur-

ance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial

reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable

details, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are

being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the

company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.



Place: Mumbai

Date: 28th May, 2025
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Inherent Limitation of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of

collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and

not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future

periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all

material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial

controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on “the internal control over

financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control

sated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India”.

For ABN & Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 004447C

CA S.C. KABRA
Partner

(M. N.: 035604)
UDIN: 25035604BMJLFQ2787
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2025

Bhopal Singh Choudhary

Chief Financial Officer

Rs. in Thousand

41

As per our Report of even date

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies - As per Note   1

Other Note to Accounts -  As per Note  27

ASSETS

(1) Non-current Assets

(a)   i   Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets

 ii  Work in progress-Denim

(b)  Financial Assets

(i)  Loans

(ii)  Other Financial Assets

(c) Defferd Tax Asset

(d) Other non-current Assets

(2) Current Assets

(A) Financial Assets

(i) Trade Receivables

(ii) Other Current Assets

(iii) Cash & Cash Equivalents

(iv) Inventories

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

(a) Equity Share Capital

(b) Other Equity

TOTAL EQUITY

LIABILITIES

(1) Non - Current Liabilities

Other Non Current Liabilities

(a) Borrowings

(b) Financial Liabilities

(c) Defferd tax Liabilities

(2) Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ii) Trade Payables

(b) Other Current Liabilities

(c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

TOTAL  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Particulars
Note

Ref.

As at March

31,2024

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

As at March

31,2025

5,37,442

5,64,850

-

3,776

5,497

-

3,973

11,15,538

24,705

60,977

2,306

21,842

1,09,830

12,25,368

90,536

3,62,557

4,53,093

6,51,580

9,035

2,927

6,63,542

89,085

6,320

11,298

2,030

1,08,733

12,25,368

81,941

7,03,605

-

3,260

15,448

24

389

8,04,667

5,181

79,500

342

89,279

1,74,302

9,78,969

90,536

3,45,251

4,35,787

5,05,967

2,380

5,08,347

22,267

6,851

5,640

77

34,835

9,78,969

Ashok  Kumar Kothari

Director, DIN 00132801

Smt. Sushila Kothari

Director, DIN 00132802

Anshul Kothari
Managing Director, DIN 02624500

Place  :  Bhilwara,

Date   : 28.05.2025

CA S.C.KABRA

Partner
M. No. 035604

For ABN & CO.

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 004447C

For and behalf of the Board

14

15

16

17

Ms. Ritu Jhamnani

Company Secetary
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025

42

Rs. in Thousand

As per our Report of even date        For and behalf of the Board

I Income from operations

II Other Income

III Total income (I+II)

IV Expenses :

Cost of materials consumed

Purchases of stock-in trade and job charges

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work -in-progress and stock-in-trade

Employees benefit expenses

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Other expenses

Total Expenses

V Profit before exceptional items and tax (III-IV)

VI Exceptional Items

VII Profit before tax (V-VI)

VIII Tax expense :

(1) Current tax

(2) Deferred tax / Assets

(3) Income tax of Earlier Year

X Other Comprehensive Income

XI Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X)

XII Earning per equity share (Basic )

XII Earning per equity share (Diluted)

Particulars
Note

Ref.

For the Year ended

March 31,2025

For the Year ended

March 31,2024

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

2

25

26

2,49,682

1,000

2,50,682

-

1,40,477

29,037

27,103

5,921

7,985

7,190

15,207

2,32,920

6,704

24,466

4,212

2,951

(3)

17,306

-

17,306

1.91

1.91

94,024

1,494

95,518

70,431

16,060

(3,070)

1,761

1,011

205

3,202

85,999

5,919

15,033

20,952

3,545

40

27

17,340

-

17,340

1.92

2.36

Profit / (Loss) for the period from Continuing
IX Operations (VII-VII)

17,762

Statement of Significant accounting policies As per Note 1

Other Note to Accounts As per Note 27

Bhopal Singh Choudhary

Chief Financial Officer

Ashok  Kumar Kothari
Director, DIN 00132801

Smt. Sushila Kothari

Director, DIN 00132802

Anshul Kothari
Managing Director, DIN 02624500

Place  :  Bhilwara,

Date   : 28.05.2025

CA S.C.KABRA

Partner
M. No. 035604

For ABN & CO.

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 004447C

Ms. Ritu Jhamnani

Company Secetary
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2025

As per our Report of even date For and on behaf of the Board

43

Particulars
Year End 31-03-2025

Cash and  equivlents consist of cash on hand blances with banks Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise the

following amounts in the balance sheet :

Cash on hand and bank balances

Short term investments

Cash and cash equivalents as reported

Effect on exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents as restated

2306

2,306

2,306

342

342

342

Rs. Rs.
Year End 31-03-2024
Rs. Rs.

Cash & Cash equivalents :

Rs. in Thousand

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortization expense

Profit on sale of fixed assets (Net)

Interest received

Interest expenses

(Increase) decrease in trade and other recivables

(INcrease)/ decrease in inventories

Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables and other liabilities

Income taxes paid

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Interest recived

Dividend received

Net cash from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid

Proceds issue of preferential shares

Increase (decrease) in Borrawings

Dividend paid

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of reporting period

205

(15,033)

(1,494)

1011

(73,231)

(54,065)

24,392

3,572

(5,99,971)

16,843

1,494

-

(1,011)

1,49,013

5,05,967

20,952

(15,311)

5,641

(1,02,904)

(97,263)

3,572

(1,00,836)

(5,81,634)

6,53,968

(28,502)

28,844

342

24,466

7,471

31,937

88,950

1,20,887

4,209

1,16,678

(3,19,158)

2,04,444

1,964

342

2,306

7190

(6,704)

(1,000)

7,985

4,850

67,437

16,663

4,209

(3,27,998)

7,840

1,000

(7,985)

-

2,12,429

Bhopal Singh Choudhary

Chief Financial Officer

Ashok  Kumar Kothari
Director, DIN 00132801

Smt. Sushila Kothari

Director, DIN 00132802

Anshul Kothari
Managing Director, DIN 02624500

Place  :  Bhilwara,

Date   : 28.05.2025

CA S.C.KABRA
Partner

M. No. 035604

For ABN & CO.

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 004447C
Ms. Ritu Jhamnani

Company Secetary
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Statement of Changes in Equity for The year ended 31st MARCH 2025

(Rs. in Thousand.)

6  (A)  Equity Share Capital

Equity share capital of face value 10.00 each

Balances as at March 31,2024

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2025

Value

90,536

90,536

No. of Shares

90,53,630

90,53,630

6  (B) Other equity

Balance as on 31st March 2024

Profit for the period

Balance as on 31 st March 2025

Total

-

-

-

1,76,663

17,306

1,93,969

Other
Comprehensive

Income

Retained
Earnings

Items of OCIReserves and Surplus

Securities
Premium

Capital
Reserve

As per our Report of even date        For and on behalf of the Board

Statement of Significant accounting policies as per Note  - 1

Other Notes to Accounts as per Note - 27

1,68,318

1,68,318

270

-

270

3,45,251

17,306

3,62,557

Bhopal Singh Choudhary

Chief Financial Officer

Ashok  Kumar Kothari
Director, DIN 00132801

Smt. Sushila Kothari

Director, DIN 00132802

Anshul Kothari
Managing Director, DIN 02624500

Place  :  Bhilwara,

Date   : 28.05.2025

CA S.C.KABRA
Partner

M. No. 035604

For ABN & CO.

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 004447C
Ms. Ritu Jhamnani

Company Secetary
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BHILWARA SPINNERS LIMITED

45

Note:1. COMPANY OVERVIEW AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & PRACTICES AND NOTES ON

ACCOUNTS FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

(A). CORPORATE INFORMATION

BHILWARA SPINNERS LTD. (The Company) is a public company incorporated and domiciled in india has its registerd office

at 26,industrial area gandhinagar Bhilwara, Rajathan, The Company has primary listing on the BSE Limited.

(B). SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Statement of Compliance

The financial statements are prepared in the accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) As prescribed under

section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 read with the Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015 as

ammended and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of india (SEBI) The accounts are prepared on

historical cost basis, as a going concern and are consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

2. Use Of Esimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting princlples requires estimates

and assumptions. to be made that affect reportable amount of assets and liabilities on the date of financial statements and

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Diffrence between the actual results and estimates are

recognized in the year in which the results are known/ materialazed.

Functional and Presentation Curency :

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company of the primary

economic environment in which the Company operates

3. INCOME  Recognition

a)   Income and expenditure are accounted for on accrual basis except :

      - Interest charged in the invoices, which is accounted for at the time of raising of invoices.

      - Overdue interest on late payment, which is accounted for on cash basis.

      - Medical reimbursement to employees, which are accounted for on cash basis.

b)  Sales are exclude GST

4. INVENTORY VALUATION

           Basis of Valuation

a) Finished goods : At lower of cost and net realisable value

Stock in process : At lower of cost and net realisable value

Waste : At estimated realisable value

Raw Materials : At lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is arrived at by using " First In First Out" method.

Stores & spares : At cost or below Cost is arrived at by using " weighted average " method.

5. Fixed  Assets

a) Fixed assets are stated at  their original cost of acquisition  including  freight ,  incidental  expenses and  other non

refundable taxes or levies related  to acquisition and installation of the  concerned assets. Interest on  borrowed  funds

attributable to acquisition/construction of fixed assets and related pre-operative expenses up to the date of commercial

production,net of sales of trial production,are also capitalised where appropriate GST availed has been deducted from

the cost of respective assets.

b) Project  under  Commissioning and  other Capital Works-in-Progress  are  carried at cost, comprising direct   cost, related

incidental expenses and interest on borrowings there against.

c) (i) The carrying amounts of fixed assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date, if there is any indication of impairment

    based on internal /external factors.

(ii) An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount and the

    same is recognized as an expense in the statement of Profit & Loss and Carrying amount of the asset is reduced to

    recoverable amount.

(iii) Reversal of impairment losses recognized in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the impairment

     losses recognized for the assets no longer exists or have decreased.
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6. Depreciation

On Straight line method at the rates and in the manner prescribed under Part-C  of Schedule II the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on assets costing upto Rs.5000/- is provided in full in the year of acquisition

7. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the

cost of assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All

other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

8. Foreign Exchange Transaction /Translation

     The functional currency of the Company is the indian rupees- These Financial statements is presented in Indian Rupes.

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate on the date of transaction. The exchange

gain/ loss on settlement negotiation during year is recognised in the Statement of profit. and loss. Foreign Curency mon-

etary transactions remaining unsettled at the end of the year are converted at year-end rates. The resultant gain or loss

accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

9. Provisions, Contingent Liability & Contingent Assets

      (a)  Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement, are recognized when the present obligation

       resulting from past events given  rise to probability of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits on settlement.

 (b)  Contingent liabilities are not recognized and are disclosed in notes.

      (c)  Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in financial statements.

      (d)  Provisions are reviewed at each Balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

10. Employees Benefits

(a) Retirement benefits in the form of Provident fund, Pension Schemes and Superannuation are defined contribution

schemes and the contributions are charged to the Profit & Loss Account of the year when the contributions to the

respective funds are due.

(b) During the year 2024-2025, there is no Staff eligible for Gratuity there for no provision for gratuity is made during the year.

(c)   Provision for Leave encashment is accrued and provided for on the basis of an actual valuation made at the end of each

financial year.

(d)   Actuarial gains / losses are immediately taken to Profit & Loss Account and are not deferred.

(e)   Expenses incurred on voluntary retirement of employees are charged off to the Profit & Loss Account in the year of

incurrence.

(f)   Liability on account of short term employee benefits, comprising largely of performance incentives is recognized on an

undiscounted, accrual basis during the period on the vesting period of benefit.

11. Tax Expense

a) Current year charge

Provision for taxation is ascertained on the basis of  assessable  profits computed in accordance  with the provision of

Income Tax  Act, 1961.However, where the tax is computed in accordance with the provision of  Section 115JB of  the

income Tax act,1961,as Minimum Alternate Tax(MAT),it is charged.

b) Deferred Tax

i) Deferred tax is recognized, subject to the consideration of prudence, as the tax effect of timing difference between the

taxable income and accounting  income computed for the current accounting year and reversal of earlier years’ timing

differences.

 ii) Deferred tax assets are recognized and carried forward to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty, except arising

from unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses which are recognized to the extent that there is deferred tax

liabilities or there is virtual certainty,that suffucient future taxable income.

(C)  MAT TAX

      No provision is made for MAT credit entitlement as per past practice followed by Company.
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NON -CURRENT ASSETS
NOTE 2 : PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENTS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

PARTICULARS BUILDING PLANT &
MACHINERY

FURNITURE
 & FIXTURE

VECHELE LEASEHOLD
LAND

TOTAL

NON -CURRENT ASSETS
NOTE 3 : FINANCIAL ASSETS- LOANS

As at March
31, 2025

As at March
31, 2024

-

-

-

1,596

2,180

3,776

-

-

-

 1,080

2,180

3,260

Loans & Advances- (Unsecured Considered Good)

a) Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial persons and related parties

b) To Employes

c) To Bodies Corporates

d) To Others

Total

As at March
31, 2025

As at March
31, 2024

5,497

5,497

15,448

15,448

Deposits having remaining maturity of more than 12 months

Total

NOTE 5 : OTHER NON -CURRENT ASSETS

As at March
31, 2025

As at March
31, 2024

3,973

-

3,973

354

35

389

NOTE 4 : OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Rs. in Thousand)

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

Gross Block

As on 31/03/2024

Additions

Disposal

As on 31/03/2025

Accumulated Depreciation

As on 31/03/2024

For the year 2024-25

On Disposal

As on 31/03/2025

Net Block as on 31/03/2025

Net Block as on 31/03/2024

PROJECT IN PROGRESS

 3,223

1,13,980

-

 1,17,203

260

1,017

 -

1,278

1,15,925

2,962

242

3,46,254

  -

   3,46,496

134

5,843

 -

5,977

3,40,520

108

  4

          542

                -

     545

-

               11

                -

      11

    535

      4

-

2,504

-

                2,504

-

265

-

265

2,239

-

OFFICE
EQUIPMENTS

PROJECT IN PROGRESS

AS WISE WORK IN PROGRESS

CURRENT YEAR

PRVIOUS YEAR

0-1 Year

3,27,360

5,99,971

1-2 Year

2,37,489

1,03,634

TOTAL

5,64,850

7,03,605

78,847

-

1,136

77,711

    -

                -

                -

               -

77,711

78,847

82,425

4,63,826

1,136

5,45,116

                  -

-

484

7,190

            -

7,674

5,37,442

81,941

5,64,850

110

546

-

657

   90

            54

                -

     144

513

20

Un Secured, Considered Good

Security Deposits

Prepaid Expenses

Total

(Rs. in Thousand)
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Raw Material

Work In Progress

Finished Goods

Traded Goods

Total

NOTE  9 : INVENTORY

PARTICULARS As at March
31, 2025

As at March
31, 2024

10,663

806

10,373

-

21,842

50,997

-

-

38,282

89,279

CURRENT ASSETS
NOTE 6 : FINANCIAL ASSETS- TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at March
31, 2025

As at March
31, 2024

24,705

-

-

-

-

3,921

28,626

3,921

24,705

5,181

-

-

-

-

3,921

9,102

3,921

5,181

UNDISPUTED, TRADE RECEIVABLE-UNSECURED AND CONSIDERED GOOD :

Out standing Less Than 6 Month

Out Standing for 6 Month to 1 Year

Out Standing for 1 Year to 2 Year

Out Standing for 2 Year to 3 Year

Out Standing More Than 3 Year

UNDISPUTED TRADE RECEIVABLE - CREDIT IMPAIRED

Out Standing More Than 3 Year

Less : Provision for doubtful Debts (Legal Cases Pending)

TOTAL

As at March
31, 2025

As at March
31, 2024

2,492

1,065

57,420

60,977

51,265

28,234

79,500

Advance to Suppliers

Accured Income on job Charges

Duties & Taxes Refundable

TOTAL

NOTE  7 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(Rs. in Thousand)

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

BALANCES WITH BANK

Current Account

O.D. Account

Cash in hand

Total

NOTE  8 : FINANCIAL ASSETS - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

PARTICULARS
As at March

31, 2025
As at March

31, 2024

67

1,736

502

2,306

171

171

342
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NOTE 11 : OTHER EQUITY

As at March
31, 2025

As at March
31, 2024

270

1,68,318

1,93,969

-

3,62,557

270

1,68,318

1,76,663

-

3,45,251

(a) Capital reserve

(b) Security Premium

(C) Retained Earnings

(d) Other comprehensive Income

Total

PARTICULARS

(Rs.In Thousand)

Ahinsa infrastruture & Devoplers Ltd.

Smt. Sushila Devi Kothari

Ashok kumar kothari

Anshul Kothari

Bhanwar Lal Kothari

Puneet Kothari

Narendra Kothari

Chanda devi Kothari

Bhanwar Lal Kothari HUF

Narendra Kothari HUF

Akshita Tater

Lad Kanwar Kothari

Shreyansh Kothari

Shree Bharka India Ltd.

Shree Bharka Synthetics Ltd.

ii) Details of promoter & Promoter Group share Holding

NAME OF SHARE HOLDER As at March 31, 2024

36,46,740

100038

70000

75000

90000

70000

75000

138404

55000

55000

40000

122438

73889

-

-

40.28

1.10

0.77

0.83

0.99

0.77

0.83

1.53

0.61

0.61

0.44

1.35

0.82

As at March 31, 2025

35,88,494

100038

70000

75000

90000

70000

75000

138404

55000

55000

40000

122438

73889

430000

103318

39.64

1.10

0.77

0.83

0.99

0.77

0.83

1.53

0.61

0.61

0.44

1.35

0.82

4.75

1.14

No. of Shares held Holding % Holding %No. of Shares held

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

No. of Shares held No. of Shares heldHolding % Holding %

35,88,494 39.64 36,46,740 40.28

Disclosures :-  (i) Details of Shareholding in excess of 5 %

Name of Shareholder

Ahinsa infrastruture & Devoplers Ltd.

A. Authorised :

1, 24,90,000 equity shares of 10 each

1,000 redeemable cumulative preference shares of 100 each

Total

B. Issued Subscribed & Fully Paid -up :

Equity Shares begenging of the year

Preferencial Share issue during the year

Equity shares end of year as on 31-03-2025

Total

NOTE 10 : SHARE CAPITAL

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2024

1,24,90,000

1,000

1,24,91,000

67,61,130

22,92,500

90,53,630

90,53,630

1,24,900

100

1,25,000

67,611

22,925

90,536

90,536

As at March 31, 2025

1,24,90,000

1,000

1,24,91,000

90,53,630

90,53,630

90,53,630

1,24,900

100

1,25,000

90,536

90,536

90,536

No. of Shares Amount AmountNo. of Shares

(Rs. in Thousand)
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As at March
31, 2025

As at March
31, 2024

PARTICULARS

NOTE 12 :BORROWING

7,00,631

(49,051)

6,51,580

Secured Term Loan : SBI for Denim Project

Less : Due With in 1 year

Total

5,22,106

(16,140)

5,05,966

Rupee Term Loan from the State Bank OF India (SBI) IS SECURED BY :-

(a) First and exclusive hypothecation charges on all fixed assets of company including all plant and machinery, present &

future lying in factory premises or elsewhere in the company.

b) Equitable Mortgage of Factory Land and Building situated at plot No. SPL-1, RIICO industrial area Biliya extn. Admeasuring

total area 26800 sqmtr

c) Equitable Mortgage of Factory land situated at plot no-1 Araji No. 135/1,1519/135 and 1520/ 135 total area 3415.24 sqmtr

d) personal guarntee of Directors and Corporate Gurantee of M/s Ahinsha infrastructure & Developers Ltd.

e) period of advance & repayment Term : Term loan repayable in 28 quarterly instalments starting from August 2025

f) Interest Rate is 9.35 % p.a. (.20% above EBLR)

(Rs.In Thousand)

As at March
31, 2025

As at March
31, 2024

PARTICULARS

NOTE 13 : OTHER NON CURRENT LIABLITIES

1,662

7,373

9,035

Liability towards staff and worker

Other liabilities

Total

1,607

773

2,380

NOTE  15 : FINANCIAL LIABLITIES - TRADE PAYABLES

As at March
31, 2025

As at March
31, 2024

Particulars

-

6,320

-

-

-

6,320

Trade payable for Goods : Others

Out Standing Less than 1 Year

Out Standing 1 to 2 Year

Out Standing 2 to 3 Year

Out Standing More than 3 Year

Total

6,851

-

-

-

6,851

CURRENT LIABILTIES
NOTE 14 : FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS

As at March
31, 2025

As at March
31, 2024

-

49,051

40,034

89,085

Secured Loans : With SBI

Over Draft With SBI Secured against Pledge of Fixed Deposit

Current Maturity of Long Term Debts

Corporate Loan - Un Secured

Total

6,127

16,140

0

22,267

Particulars

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES :
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As at March
31, 2025

As at March
31, 2024

2,030

2,030

77

77

Provision for Taxes (Net of Tds. Tcs, Adv. Tax)

Total

Particulars

NOTE 17  : CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

NOTE 18 : INCOME FORM OPERATIONS

As at March
31, 2025

As at March
31, 2024

1,86,178

19,360

44,144

2,49,682

(a) Sale of products -

Fabric Sales

Weaving Job Income

Trading Goods

Total

94,024

-

-

94,024

Particulars

(Rs.In Thousand)

NOTE  16 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at March
31, 2025

As at March
31, 2024

Particulars

4,149

2,310

4,838

11,298

Advance from Customers

Other Liabilities

Statutory Liabilities

Total

3,500

2,019

121

5,640

NOTE 19 : OTHER INCOME

As at  March 31,2025 As at  March 31,2024

1,000

1,000

1,494

1,494

Interest Income

Total

Particulars

As at  March 31,2025 As at  March 31,2024

50,997

96,809

7,389

1,40,417

-

3,274

3,274

-

-

60

-

60

1,40,477

YARN

Opening stock

Purchase

Closing Stock

Consumption During Year

DYES AND CHEMICAL

Opening Stock

Purchase

Closing Stock

Consumption During Year

PACKING MATERIAL

Opening stock

Purchase

Closing Stock

Consumption During Year

Total Consumption During Year

NOTE 20 : COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED

-

1,21,427

50,997

70,431

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

70,431

Particulars



Annual Report 2024-2552

NOTE 24 : FINANCE COSTS

As at  March 31,2025 As at  March 31,2024

7,921

14

7,985

1,002

9

1,011

Interest

Bank Charges

Total

Particulars

As at  March 31,2025 As at  March 31,2024

5,617

234

70

5,921

1,605

86

70

1,761

(a) Salaries, Wages And Bonus

(b) Contribution To Provident, Fund Gratuity And Other Funds

(c) Workmen And Staff Welfare

Total

Particulars

NOTE 23  : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

(Rs.In Thousand)

As at  March 31,2025 As at  March 31,2024

10,373

806

11,179

38,282

38,282

27,103

Particulars

NOTE 22 : CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,
WORK IN PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE

Closing Inventories :

Stock in Trade GUM

Finish Fabric

Fabric in Process (wip)

Total (A)

Opening Inventories - Stock In Trade GUM

Total (B)

Increase)/Decrease In Stocks (B-A)

38,282

38,282

35,212

35,212

(3,070)

As at  March 31,2025 As at  March 31,2024

3,013

26,024

29,037

3,069

12,991

-

16,060

Guwar Seed Gum

Job Weaving, Doubling & Processing Charges

Total

Particulars

NOTE 21 : PURCHASES OF STOCK -IN TRADE AND JOB CHARGES (Rs.In Thousand)



Ashok Kumar Kothari

Director, DIN 00132801

Smt. Sushila Kothari

Director, DIN 00132802

Anshul Kothari
Managing Director, DIN 02624500

Bhopal Singh Choudhary

Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Ritu Jhamnani

(Company Secretary)

For ABN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 004447C

CA .S.C. KABRA
Partner

Mem. No. 035604

Place  :  Bhilwara
Date   :  28-05.2025

Signature To Note to 1-26

As at  March 31,2025 As at  March 31,2024Particulars

(a) Net Gain on Sale of Land

TOTAL

6,704

6,704

15,033

15,033

NOTE 26 : EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
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As at  March 31,2025 As at  March 31,2024

235

231

11,697

504

336

13,003

175

35

74

706

147

9

166

44

96

23

43

30

497

4

155

2,204

15,207

Particulars

A. MANUFACTURING & DIRECT EXPENSES

30

287

317

150

35

92

488

113

-

231

-

220

17

57

30

1,294

6

152

2,885

3,202

NOTE 25 : OTHER EXPENSES

Stores and Spares

Comission and brokerage

Power Charges

Repair & Maintenance

Godown Rent

TOTAL A

B. ADMINISTRATIVE, SELLING, DISTRIBUTION & OTHER EXP.

Audit fees

Other Fees To Auditor

Advertisement

Legal & Professional Expenses

Printing & Stationery

Directors Seeting Fees

Repair & Maintenance- Others

Insurance Expeneses - General

Postage Expenses

Telephonic Expenses

Office Maintaince Expenses

Conveyence Expenses

Share Expenses (Listing Fees and Other Expenses)

Subcription Expenses

Miscellaneous expenses

TOTAL B

TOTAL A+ B
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                          (Rs.in thousand)  (Rs.in thousand)

27.   OTHER NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

1.     Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of

A) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts:          NIL               101

B) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not

provided for                            97,110

C) In the year 2020-2021 Company has Purchased 26800 sqmtrs Industrial Land and 1 Biga 7 biswa Agriculture land for Rs.

7,51,56,189 through open auction as directed by Hon.. N.C.L.T. Jaipur Bench Conducted by Official Liquidator on 31.8.2020.

and the same sale deed registered in favour of the company on 03.02.2021 in Registrar Office Bhilwara. However, M/s

Pammvi Consultancy Services ltd (An operational Creditor of Liquidated Company, Global Syntex Bhilwara Ltd) and GST

department has filed a Legal suit before Hon N.C.L.T Jaipur Bench against Liquidator and also made the company as

Respondent No. 4 as The Financial Creditor/Auction Purchaser. The matter is still pending before The N.C.L.T. Bench

Jaipur and subjudice and Company does not anticipate any financial liability. The Order pronounced by Hon.NCLT on

23.04.2024 and the instant Application no IA(IBC)340/JPR/2029 of M/s Pammvi Consultancy Services Ltd and IA NO (IBC)

NO 68/JPR/2022  of CGST Department is dismissed and stands disposed of, however in Hon. NCLT order it was directed

that the Financial Creditors to return  interest charged on finance amount required to be return,due to this liability of

Rs.6147967.00 on account of interest has arisen but company has not accepted the said liability and has prefered appeal

before the upper bench i.e.NCLAT.

2. EMPLOYEES BENEFITS PLANS

1. The Company makes contribution towards employees’ Provident Fund, Pension Fund, Under the rules of these schemes,

the Company is required to  contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs. During the year the Company has recognized

Rs. 2.34 Lac as expenses to these plans.

3. Debtors, Creditors and advances are subject to confirmations, Reconciliations and adjustments, if any. The Management

does not expect any significant variation and in the process of taking the necessary steps in this regard in the current year.

4.  Related party disclosure in accordance with the INd AS 24 issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

is given below.

1. Names of Related parties and nature of relationship where control exists

a)  Key Management personal and relative of such personal

Ashok Kumar Kthari Director

Anshul Kothari Managing Director

Ms. Shubhangi Janifer Director

Smt. Sushila Kothari Director

Himansu Jhamar Director

Mrs.Chitra Naraniwal Director

Bhopal Singh Choudhary Chief Finacial Officer

Smt. Anjali Jain (Up to 31/12/2024) Company Secretary

Ritu Jhamnani (from 02/01/2025) Company Secretary

b) Enterprise over which key Management personal and their relatives are able to exercise in fluence

Ahinsa Sutings Pvt. Ltd.

Shree Barkha Synthetics Ltd.

Shree Barkha India Ltd.

Ahinsa Infrastructure and dovelopers. Ltd.
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2. The related party transaction are as under

A. Key Manegerial Personnel

Description

Managerial Remuneration & salary

Bhopal Singh Choudhary

Anjali Jain

Ritu Jhamnani

Total

Current Year Previous Year

1,231

288

45

1,564

1,231

284

-

1,615

Purchase

Shree Bharka India Ltd.

Shree Bharka Syntheties Ltd.

Total

8,996

6,484

15,480

3,677

3,279

6,956

Sales

Shree Bharka India Ltd.

Shree Bharka Synthetics Ltd.

Total

2,11,517

0

2,11,518

98,877

-

98,877

Loan Taken

Shree Bharka Synthetics Ltd.

Total

38,900

38,900

-

-

Interest Paid

Shree Bharka Synthetics Ltd.

Total

1,261

1,261

-

-

(i)

B. Other Related Enterprises

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Shree Bharka India Ltd. (payable)

Shree Bharka Synthetics Ltd. (payable)

Shree Bharka India Ltd. (Receivable)

2024-2025

4,149

40,034

-

2023-2024

1,564

321

5,180

3. Outstanding Balances at the year end.

Rs. in Thousand
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5. Earnings per share:                 31.03.2025                 31.03.2024

Net Profit After TAX (Rs. In Thousand)     17,306                       17,340

Basic number of equity shares 90,53,630                   90,53,630

Weighted average number of equity shares 90,53,630                   73,49,914

Earnings Per Share Basic         1.91                           1.92

Earnings Per Share Basic Diluted         1.91                           2.36

6. Based on the information available with the Company, no balance is due to Micro & Small Enterprises as defined under

the Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 as on 31st March 2025. Further during the year no

interest has been paid or payable under the term of said act.

7.     Ratios 2024-2025      2023-2024

1. CURRENT RATIO (In Times)         1.01   5.00

2. DEBT EQUITY RATIO (In Times)         1.46   1.16

3. DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO (DSCR)                          4.12  22.11

4. RETURN ON EQUITY RATIO (%)                            4%   19%

5. INVENTORY TURNOVER RATIO (In Times)                          3.54   0.95

6. TRADE RECEIVABLE TURNOVER RATIO  (In Times)       16.71   0.06

7. TRADE PAYABLE TURNOVER RATIO  (In Times)       19.62   0.05

8. NET CAPITAL TURNOVER RATIO  (In Times)                       227.50   4.63

9. NET PROFIT RATIO (%)                            7%   18%

10 RETURN ON CAPITAL EMPLOYED RATIO (%)                            2%    4%

11 Return on Investment ratio                                             NA    NA

In Accordance with our Report attached

For and behalf of the Board

8. Figures for the previous Year have been restated/ regrouped/ rearranged wherever considered neccessary.

Bhopal Singh Choudhary

Chief Financial Officer

Ashok  Kumar Kothari
Director, DIN 00132801

Smt. Sushila Kothari

Director, DIN 00132802

Anshul Kothari
Managing Director, DIN 02624500

Place  :  Bhilwara,

Date   : 28.05.2025

CA S.C.KABRA

Partner
M. No. 035604

For ABN & CO.

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 004447C

Ms. Ritu Jhamnani

Company Secetary

Note : Variance in Ratios due to variations in business volume and activity the year. Ratios for the current year have been

calculated on the basis of different parameters so these are not comparable with previous year's ratios.
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